
REGULAR 
COUNCIL 
MEETING
OCTOBER 27, 2021
10:00 AM

M A C K E N Z I E  C O U N T Y

F O R T  V E R M I L I O N  C O U N C I L
C H A M B E R S

7 8 0 . 9 2 7 . 3 7 1 8

w w w . m a c k e n z i e c o u n t y . c o m

4 5 1 1 - 4 6  A v e n u e ,  F o r t  V e r m i l i o n

o f f i c e @ m a c k e n z i e c o u n t y . c o m





MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

 
Wednesday, October 27 2021 

10:00 a.m. 
 

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers 
 

Fort Vermilion, Alberta 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

  Page 
CALL TO ORDER: 1. a) Call to Order 

 
 

AGENDA: 2. a) Adoption of Agenda 
 

 

ADOPTION OF 
PREVIOUS MINUTES: 

3. a) Minutes of the September 14, 2021 Regular  
  Council Meeting 
 

7 
 
 

  b) Minutes of the October 12, 2021 Budget  
  Council Meeting 
 

31 

  c) Business Arising out of the Minutes  
 

 

CLOSED MEETING: Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act Division 
2, Part 1 Exceptions to Disclosure 
 

 

 4. a)  
 

 

  b)  
 

 

TENDERS: 
 

Tender openings are scheduled for 11:00 a.m.  

 5. a)  
 

 

  b)  
 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: Public Hearings are scheduled for 1:00 p.m.  
 

 

  a)  
 

 

  b)  
 

 

DELEGATIONS   7. a) Homestead Holdings – Darrell Derksen  
 

 

   b)   
 

 



MACKENZIE COUNTY   PAGE 2 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, October 27, 2021 
 

GENERAL REPORTS: 8. a) CAO & Director Reports  
 

43 

  b) Mitigation Update (Standing Item)  
 

 

  c) 
 

 

AGRICULTURE 
SERVICES: 

9. a) None 
 

 

  b)  
 

 

COMMUNITY 
SERVICES: 

10. a) Waste Transfer Station Haul Contract Extension 
 

61 

  b) 2021 Campground Caretakers Bonus 
 

65 

  c)  
 

 

FINANCE: 11. a) Disaster Recovery Program Claim – Severe  
  Storm Flooding-Chateh Road  
 

69 

  b) Expense Claims - Councillors 
 

75 

  c) Expense Claims – Members at Large 77 

  d)   

  e)   

OPERATIONS: 12. a)  
 

 

  b)  
 

 

UTILITIES: 13. a)  
 

 

  b)  
 

 

PLANNING & 
DEVELOPMENT: 

14. a) Development Statistics Report – January to 
September 2021 

 

79 

  b)  
 

 

  c)  
 

 

ADMINISTRATION: 15. a)  
 

 

  b)  
 

 

  c)  
 

 



MACKENZIE COUNTY   PAGE 3 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, October 27, 2021 
 

COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE 
REPORTS: 

16. a) Council Committee Reports (verbal) 
 

 

 b) Municipal Planning Committee Meeting Minutes  
 

89 

  c) Inter-Municipal Planning Committee Meeting  
  Minutes  
 

107 

  d)  
 

 

INFORMATION / 
CORRESPONDENCE: 
 

17. a) Information/Correspondence 
 
 

113 

NOTICE OF MOTION: 
 

18. a)  
 

 

NEXT MEETING 
DATES: 

19. a)   
 

  b)   
 

ADJOURNMENT: 20. a) Adjournment  
 





Agenda Item # 3. a) 
 

Author: C. Simpson Reviewed by:  CAO:  
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: October 27, 2021 

Presented By: Carrie Simpson, Director of Legislative & Support Services 

Title:  Minutes of the September 14, 2021 Regular Council Meeting 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Minutes of the September 14, 2021, Regular Council Meeting are attached. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
 
 
COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
Approved Council Meeting minutes are posted on the County website. 
 
 
POLICY REFERENCES: 
 
 

 

7



Author: C. Simpson Reviewed by:  CAO:  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the minutes of the September 14, 2021 Regular Council Meeting be adopted as 
presented. 

8



 

 
________ 

________ 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 

10:00 a.m. 
 

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers  
Fort Vermilion, AB 

 
PRESENT: Josh Knelsen 

Walter Sarapuk 
Jacquie Bateman 
Peter F. Braun 
Cameron Cardinal 
David Driedger 
Eric Jorgensen 
Anthony Peters 
Ernest Peters 
Lisa Wardley 
 

Reeve  
Deputy Reeve – left at 12:59 p.m. 
Councillor  
Councillor  
Councillor  
Councillor  
Councillor – virtual  
Councillor  
Councilor  
Councillor  

REGRETS: 
 

 
 

 

ADMINISTRATION: 
 

Len Racher 
Byron Peters 
Carrie Simpson 
Jennifer Batt 
Jeff Simpson 
John Zacharias 
Don Roberts 
Caitlin Smith 
Grant Smith 
Chad Roberts 
Colleen Sarapuk 
 

Chief Administrative Officer  
Director of Projects and Infrastructure  
Director of Legislative Services  
Director of Finance 
Director of Operations 
Director of Utilities 
Director of Community Services  
Manager of Planning and Development  
Agricultural Fieldman 
Communications Coordinator  
Administrative Officer /Recording Secretary 

ALSO PRESENT: Members of the public 
 
Minutes of the Regular Council meeting for Mackenzie County held on September 14, 2021 in the 
Council Chambers at the Fort Vermilion County Office. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 

1. a) Call to Order 

 Reeve Knelsen called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 
 

AGENDA: 
 

2. a) Adoption of Agenda 
 

MOTION 21-09-602 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That the agenda be adopted with the additions: 

9



Page 2 of 22 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 15.c) Ratepayers Meeting 
 
CARRIED 
 

  
 

3. a) Minutes of the August 18, 2021 Regular Council  Meeting 
 

MOTION 21-09-603 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the minutes of the August 18, 2021 Regular Council Meeting be 
adopted as presented. 
 
CARRIED 
 

ADOPTION OF 
PREVIOUS MINUTES: 
 

3. b) Business Arising out of the Minutes 

CLOSED MEETING: 
 

4.  Closed Meeting 

MOTION 21-09-604 MOVED by Deputy Reeve Sarapuk 
 
That Council move into a closed meeting at 10:02 a.m. to discuss the 
following: 
 
 4.a) Labour (s. 17) 
 4.b) Labour – CAO Recruitment Process (s. 17) 
 4.c) Bursary Applications – Forgiveness Request (s. 17) 
 4.d) 2021 Bursary Applications – Additional Request (s.17) 
 4.e) Review of Boss Service (s. 16, s. 25, s. 27) 
 
 

 The following individuals were present during the closed meeting 
discussion. (MGA Section 602.08(1)(6)) 
• All Members of Council 
• Len Racher, Chief Administrative Officer 
• Byron Peters, Director of Projects & Infrastructure  
• Jennifer Batt, Director of Finance  
• Jeff Simpson, Director of Operations 
• Carrie Simpson, Director of Legislative Services  
• Don Roberts, Director of Community Services  
• Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning & Development 
• Colleen Sarapuk, Administrative Officer 
• Chad Roberts, Communication Coordinator  
• John Zacharias, Director of Utilities  
 
Administration left closed meeting at 10:50 a.m. 
 

10



Page 3 of 22 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

MOTION 21-09-605 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That Council move out of a closed meeting at 11:09 a.m.  
 
CARRIED 
 

CLOSED MEETING: 4.a) Labour 
 

MOTION 21-09-606 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the Fort Vermilion County Office and shop be closed to the public and 
the flags be lowered on September 30th annually to honor the National Day 
for Truth & Reconciliation.  
 
CARRIED 
 

CLOSED MEETING: 4.b) Labour – CAO Recruitment Process 
 

MOTION 21-09-607 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That Leaders International be engaged for CAO Recruitment 
 
CARRIED 
 

CLOSED MEETING: 4.c) Bursary Applicant – Forgiveness Request 
 

MOTION 21-09-608 MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the Bursary recipient repay half of the bursary due to 
evacuation/Canada Post issues. 
 
CARRIED 
 

CLOSED MEETING: 4.d) 2021Bursary Applications – Additional Request 
 

MOTION 21-09-609 MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That Council award 1 recipient as presented for the total of $1000. 
 
CARRIED 
 

CLOSED MEETING: 4.e) Review of Boss Services Grader Service 
 

MOTION 21-09-610 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That a tender for the maintenance of Zama Access Road be advertised. 

11



Page 4 of 22 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 21-09-611 MOVED by Councillor Cardinal 
 
That a tender for the maintenance of Chateh road be advertised. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 21-09-612 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That administration advertise for a grader operator/equipment operator 
position for the Zama area. 
 
CARRIED 
 

TENDERS: 5.a) Fort Vermilion Waste Transfer Station Caretaker  Contract 
 

MOTION 21-09-613 MOVED by Deputy Reeve Sarapuk  
 
That the Fort Vermilion Waste Transfer Station Caretaker Contract 
Envelope #1 be opened. 
 
CARRIED 
 
Bidder Required Documents 
Trudy Derksen All required documents 

 
 

MOTION 21-09-614 MOVED by Councillor Driedger 
 
That the Fort Vermilion Waste Transfer Station Caretaker Contract 
Envelope #2 be opened. 
 
CARRIED 
 
Bidder Cost 
Trudy Derksen $2150/month ($77,400 (36 month) 

 
 

MOTION 21-09-615 Moved by Councillor Cardinal 
 
That the bid received for the Fort Vermilion Waste Transfer Station 
caretaking Contract be rejected due to budget and be retendered with an 
opening date of October 12, 2021. 
 

12



Page 5 of 22 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

CARRIED 
 

TENDERS: 5.b) Tenders Gravel Crushing & Overburden Removal 
 

MOTION 21-09-616 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That the ‘Gravel Pit Clearing & Overburden Removal’ Tenders - Envelope 
#1 be opened. 
 
CARRIED 
 
Bidder Required Documents  
Green Acres Ventures  All required documents 
Knelsen Sand & Gravel All required documents 
Boss Bridgeworks All required documents 
PME Inc All required documents 
Dechant Construction All required documents 
Northern Road Builders All required documents  

 
 

MOTION 21-09-617 MOVED by Councillor E. Peters 
 
That the ‘Gravel Pit Clearing & Overburden Removal’ Tenders - Envelope 
#2 be opened for the qualified bidders. 
 
CARRIED 
 
Bidder Schedule A 

 
Schedule B 
 

Schedule C 
 

Total 

Green Acres 
Ventures  

$665,700 $499,990 $360,400 $1,526,090 

Knelsen Sand 
& Gravel 

$548,400 $400,410 $299,450 $1,248,260 

Boss 
Bridgeworks 

$363,600 $245,270 $181,850 $790,720 

PME Inc $626,840 $400,168.50 $307,278 $1,334,289.50 
Dechant 
Construction 

$251,459.24 $500,833.12 $197,328.24 $949,620.60 

Northern Road 
Builders 

$185,795 $114,462 $94,710 $394,967 

 
 

MOTION 21-09-618 MOVED by Councillor Driedger 
 
That the 2021 Operating budget be amended by $94,967 for the Gravel Pit 
Clearing & Overburden Removal to $394,967 with funds coming from the 
General Operating Reserve.  

13



Page 6 of 22 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 21-09-619 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That the ‘Gravel Pit Clearing & Overburden Removal’ contracts be awarded 
to the lowest qualified bidders while staying within budget. 
 
CARRIED 
 

TENDERS: 5.c) Hamlet of Zama City – Water Treatment Plant Upgrading 
 

MOTION 21-09-620 MOVED by Councillor E. Peters 
 
That the ‘Water Treatment Plant Upgrading’ Tender - Envelope #1 be 
opened. 
 
CARRIED 
 
Bidder Required Documents 
Good Brothers Construction 2002 Ltd All required documents 
TDE Construction Company Ltd All required documents 
AGS Mechanical Contractors Ltd All required documents  

 
 

MOTION 21-09-621 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That the ‘Water Treatment Plant Upgrading’ Tender - Envelope #2 be 
opened for the qualified bidders. 
 
CARRIED 
 
Bidder Schedule A 

 
Schedule B 
 

Schedule C 
(optional) 

Total  

Good Brothers 
Construction 
2002 Ltd 

$679,926 $115,925 $51,535 $847,386 

TDE 
Construction 
Company Ltd 

$1,066,116.6
8 

$377,500.62 No Bid $1,443,617.30 

AGS 
Mechanical 
Contractors 
Ltd 

$645,000 $127,500 $47,500 $820,000 

 
 

MOTION 21-09-622 MOVED by Councillor E. Peters 

14



Page 7 of 22 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
That Administration review the tenders and return for awarding later in the 
meeting. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 Reeve Knelsen recessed the meeting at 12:26 p.m. and reconvened the 
meeting at 1:02 p.m. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 6.a) Bylaw 1231-21 La Crete Off-Site Levy Bylaw Consolidation 
 

 Reeve Knelsen called the public hearing for Bylaw 1231-21 to order at 1:03 
p.m. 
 
Reeve Knelsen asked if the public hearing for proposed Bylaw 1231-21 was 
properly advertised.  Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning & Development, 
answered that the bylaw was advertised in accordance with the Municipal 
Government Act. 
 
Reeve Knelsen asked the Development Authority to outline the proposed 
Off-Site Levy Bylaw Consolidation.  Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning & 
Development, presented the following:  

 
The La Crete Off-Site Levy Bylaw Consolidation Bylaw 1231-21 
received first reading on June 23, 2021. Since then, a stakeholder 
engagement was held to gauge the opinions from local developers. 
Concerns brought forward at the engagement were brought to 
Council on August 18, 2021 where the following motion was made: 
 
 
That Administration advertise Bylaw 1231-21 to include an 
amendment to the deferral option to include a four (4) year deferral 
program as discussed. 
 

 
The amendments to the Bylaw include the following: 
 
•Clarification of the option to defer Off-Site Levy Fees beyond 
subdivision lot registration if an agreement is made between the 
developer and County administration; 
•Reduction of the deferrable Off-Site Levy Fees from a minimum of 
$200,000 to a minimum of $150,000; 
•Addition of the option to defer all Off-Site Levy Fees for the first year. 
The first 1/3 of the fees would be due on the first anniversary of the 
subdivision approval rather than the time of signing of the 
Developer’s Agreement; 

15



Page 8 of 22 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

•A clear due date for all Off-Site Levy Fees is established as the date 
of Final Acceptance of the subdivision. Final Acceptance typically 
occurs between 3 and 5 years after subdivision approval. 

 
Reeve Knelsen asked if Council has any questions of the proposed Off-Site 
Levy Bylaw Consolidation.  
 
Q:Why is 10.d in bylaw? 
A: It should reference policy not CAO 
 
Q: Can we see a breakdown of where tax dollars are spent? 
A:  Administration will look into this. 
 
Q: What if this bylaw does not go to 3rd reading? 
A: The previous bylaw remains in effect.  
 
Reeve Knelsen asked if any submissions were received in regards to 
proposed Bylaw 1231-21.  No submissions were received. 
 
Reeve Knelsen asked if there was anyone present who would like to speak 
in regards to the proposed Bylaw 1231-21.  
  
Several local developers spoke against the fees associated with the levies. 
The developers feel that the fees are too high and should be based on 
actual costs as opposed to the estimates made from the servicing reports. 
The developers also stated that the County should subsidize a portion of the 
fees as the municipality is partially responsible for providing utility servicing 
such as water and sanitary sewer and that these costs shouldn’t be the sole 
responsibility of the developer. The developers also stated that lot 
development creates tax revenue for the municipality. 
 
Reeve Knelsen closed the public hearing for Bylaw 1231-21 at 2:17 p.m. 
 
 

MOTION 21-09-623 MOVED by Councillor A. Peters 
 
That second reading be given to Bylaw 1231-21 being the La Crete Offsite 
Levy Bylaw be tabled until further date.  
 
CARRIED 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 6.b) Bylaw 1232-21 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to Rezone  Plan 
2938RS, Block 2, Lots 2-9 (inclusive) and Plan 2938RS, Block 3, Lot 11 
from Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1” to Fort Vermilion Commercial Centre 
“FV-CC” 
 

16



Page 9 of 22 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 Reeve Knelsen called the public hearing for Bylaw 1232-21 to order at 2:22 
p.m. 
 
Reeve Knelsen asked if the public hearing for proposed Bylaw 1232-21 was 
properly advertised.  Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning & Development, 
answered that the bylaw was advertised in accordance with the Municipal 
Government Act. 
 
. Reeve Knelsen asked the Development Authority to outline the proposed 
Land Use Bylaw Amendment.  Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning & 
Development, presented the following:  
 
Mackenzie County recently purchased a number of lots with the Hamlet of 
Fort Vermilion for the purpose of relocating buildings and residences 
affected by the 2020 Ice Jam Flood. Plan 2938, Block 2, Lots 2-9 and Plan 
2938RS, Block 3, Lot 11 were identified for business relocation as a number 
of commercial lots already exist nearby. 
 
The lots are currently zoned Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1” which is not 
appropriate for the proposed commercial use. The commercial area affected 
by the 2020 Ice Jam Flood was also zoned Fort Vermilion Commercial 
Centre “FV-CC”. 
 
Only Plan 2938RS, Block 2, Lots 5 & 6 have been spoken for at this time, 
the proposed development on these lots is Retail – Convenience. A lot 
consolidation Bylaw is also being presented for public hearing 
 
Reeve Knelsen asked if Council has any questions of the proposed Land 
Use Bylaw Amendment.  There were no questions. 
 
Reeve Knelsen asked if any submissions were received in regards to 
proposed Bylaw 1232-21.  No submissions were received. 
 
Reeve Knelsen asked if there was anyone present who would like to speak 
in regards to the proposed Bylaw 1232-21.  There was no one present to 
speak to the proposed bylaw. 
 
Reeve Knelsen closed the public hearing for Bylaw 1232-21 at 2:24 p.m. 
 
 

MOTION 21-09-624 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That second reading be given to Bylaw 1232-21 being a Land Use Bylaw 
Amendment to rezone Plan 2938RS, Block 2, Lots 2-9 (inclusive) and Plan 
2938RS, Block 3, Lot 11 from Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1” to Fort Vermilion 
Commercial Centre “FV-CC” to accommodate commercial development. 

17



Page 10 of 22 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 21-09-625 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That third reading be given to Bylaw 1232-21 being a Land Use Bylaw 
Amendment to rezone Plan 2938RS, Block 2, Lots 2-9 (inclusive) and Plan 
2938RS, Block 3, Lot 11 from Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1” to Fort Vermilion 
Commercial Centre “FV-CC” to accommodate commercial development. 
 
CARRIED 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 6.c) Bylaw 1233-21 Partial Plan Cancellation and Consolidation of 
Plan 2983RS, Block 2, Lots 5 & 6 
 

 Reeve Knelsen called the public hearing for Bylaw 1233-21 to order at 2:24 
p.m. 
 
Reeve Knelsen asked if the public hearing for proposed Bylaw 1233-21 was 
properly advertised.  Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning & Development, 
answered that the bylaw was advertised in accordance with the Municipal 
Government Act. 
 
Reeve Knelsen asked the Development Authority to outline the proposed 
Partial Plan Cancellation and Consolidation.  Caitlin Smith, Manager of 
Planning & Development, presented the following:  

 
Mackenzie County has received a request to consolidate Plan 2983RS, 
Block 5, Lots 5 & 6 in the Hamlet of Fort Vermilion, to accommodate a larger 
commercial building. 
 
The lots are currently zoned Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1” which will need to 
be changed to Fort Vermilion Commercial Centre “FV-CC” to accommodate 
the proposed use. A Bylaw to rezone the subject lots is also being 
presented for public hearing. 
 
Mackenzie County recently purchased the subjects lots to allow businesses 
affected by the 2020 Ice Jam flood to relocate away from the flood zone. 
This will be the second business relocating to this area and requiring a 
larger lot. 
 
Reeve Knelsen asked if Council has any questions of the proposed Partial 
Plan Cancellation and Consolidation.   
 
Is this a business that will be moving? 
Yes it is part of the mitigation process. 

18



Page 11 of 22 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
Reeve Knelsen asked if any submissions were received in regards to 
proposed Bylaw 1233-21.  No submissions were received. 
 
Reeve Knelsen asked if there was anyone present who would like to speak 
in regards to the proposed Bylaw 1233-21.  There was no one present to 
speak to the proposed bylaw. 
 
Reeve Knelsen closed the public hearing for Bylaw 1233-21 at 2:25 p.m. 
 
 

MOTION 21-09-626 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That second reading be given to Bylaw 1233-21 being a Partial Plan 
Cancellation and Consolidation Bylaw for Plan 2938RS, Block 2, Lots 5 & 6. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 21-09-627 MOVED by Councillor Driedger 
 
That third reading be given to Bylaw 1233-21 being a Partial Plan 
Cancellation and Consolidation Bylaw for Plan 2938RS, Block 2, Lots 5 & 6. 
 
CARRIED  
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 6.d) Bylaw 1234-21 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to Rezone  NE 9-
106-15-W5M from La Crete Highway Commercial “LC-HC” to 
Institutional “I”, and from Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1”, Hamlet 
Residential 2 “H-R2”, & Manufactured Home Subdivision “MHS” to 
Hamlet Residential 1A “H-R1A”, La Crete Town Centre “LC-TC”, & 
Hamlet Residential 1B “H-R1B” 
 

 Reeve Knelsen called the public hearing for Bylaw 1234-21 to order at 2:26 
p.m. 
 
Reeve Knelsen asked if the public hearing for proposed Bylaw 1234-21 was 
properly advertised.  Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning & Development, 
answered that the bylaw was advertised in accordance with the Municipal 
Government Act. 
 
Reeve Knelsen asked the Development Authority to outline the proposed 
Land Use Bylaw Amendment.  Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning & 
Development, presented the following:  

 
Administration has received a Land Use Bylaw Amendment application to 
rezone NE 9-106-15-W5M from La Crete Highway Commercial “LC-HC” to 

19



Page 12 of 22 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

Institutional “I” and from Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1”, Hamlet Residential 2 
“H-R2”, & Manufactured Home Subdivision “MHS” to Hamlet Residential 1A 
“H-R1A”, La Crete Town Centre “LC-TC”, & Hamlet Residential 1B “H-R1B”. 
 
The developer has submitted a forty-eight (48) lot subdivision lot layout plan 
which is proposed to be residential lots with a small pocket of commercial or 
high-density residential development. 
 
The developer plans to donate the north portion of the existing parcel for a 
Medical Facility, and would like to rezone this portion in preparation for the 
future development. 
 
The La Crete Area Structure Plan identifies the north portion of the lot as 
commercial development and the south portion as residential development. 
The proposed subdivision fits within these definitions. 
The bylaw was amended from the version presented to Council for first 
reading due to changes in some of the lot sizes of the subdivision plan. The 
southeast corner was proposed to be Hamlet Residential 1B “H-R1B” but 
has changed to Hamlet Residential 1A “H-R1A” to match the rest of the cul-
de-sal. The current version of the Bylaw was the version advertised. 

 
 
Reeve Knelsen asked if Council has any questions of the proposed Land 
Use Bylaw Amendment.  There were no questions. 
 
Reeve Knelsen asked if any submissions were received in regards to 
proposed Bylaw 1234-21.  No submissions were received. 
 
Reeve Knelsen asked if there was anyone present who would like to speak 
in regards to the proposed Bylaw 1234-21.  There was no one present to 
speak to the proposed bylaw. 
 
Reeve Knelsen closed the public hearing for Bylaw 1234-21 at 2:27 p.m. 
 
 

MOTION 21-09-628 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That second reading be given to Bylaw 1234-21 being a Land Use Bylaw 
Amendment to Rezone NE 9-106-15-W5M from La Crete Highway 
Commercial “LC-HC” to Institutional “I” and from Hamlet Residential 1 “H-
R1”, Hamlet Residential 2 “H-R2”, & Manufactured Home Subdivision 
“MHS” to Hamlet Residential 1A “H-R1A”, La Crete Town Centre “LC-TC”, & 
Hamlet Residential 1B “H-R1B”. 
 
CARRIED 
 

20



Page 13 of 22 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

MOTION 21-09-629 MOVED by Councillor E. Peters 
 
That third reading be given to Bylaw 1234-21 being a Land Use Bylaw 
Amendment to Rezone NE 9-106-15-W5M from La Crete Highway 
Commercial “LC-HC” to Institutional “I” and from Hamlet Residential 1 “H-
R1”, Hamlet Residential 2 “H-R2”, & Manufactured Home Subdivision 
“MHS” to Hamlet Residential 1A “H-R1A”, La Crete Town Centre “LC-TC”, & 
Hamlet Residential 1B “H-R1B”. 
 
CARRIED 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 6.e) Bylaw 1235-21 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to Rezone  NW 15-
106-15-W5M from Agricultural “A” to Rural  Industrial General “RIG” 
 

 Reeve Knelsen called the public hearing for Bylaw 1235-21 to order at 2:27 
p.m. 
 
Reeve Knelsen asked if the public hearing for proposed Bylaw 1235-21 was 
properly advertised.  Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning & Development, 
answered that the bylaw was advertised in accordance with the Municipal 
Government Act. 
 
Reeve Knelsen asked the Development Authority to outline the proposed 
Land Use Bylaw Amendment.  Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning & 
Development, presented the following:  
 
Administration has received a Land Use Bylaw Amendment application to 
rezone NW 15-106-15-W5M from Agricultural “A” to Rural Industrial General 
“RIG”. The subject lot is adjacent to the north boundary of the Hamlet of La 
Crete.  
 
The developer has submitted a single lot subdivision application and plans 
to develop additional industrial lots in the future. 
 
Currently, there are no Area Structure Plan reference to this specific 
location other than the 2020 La Crete Industrial Lands strategy. This entire 
parcel has been identified as a proposed light industrial pocket as La Crete 
expands. 
 
Reeve Knelsen asked if Council has any questions of the proposed Land 
Use Bylaw Amendment.  There were no questions. 
 
Reeve Knelsen asked if any submissions were received in regards to 
proposed Bylaw 1235-21.  No submissions were received. 
 

21



Page 14 of 22 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

Reeve Knelsen asked if there was anyone present who would like to speak 
in regards to the proposed Bylaw 1235-21.  There was no one present to 
speak to the proposed bylaw. 
 
Reeve Knelsen closed the public hearing for Bylaw 1235-21 at 2:28 p.m. 
 
 

MOTION 21-09-630 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That second reading by given to Bylaw 1235-21 being a Land Use Bylaw 
Amendment to Rezone NW 15-106-15-W5M from Agricultural “A” to Rural 
Industrial General “RIG”.  
 
CARRIED 
 
 

MOTION 21-09-631 MOVED by Councillor E. Peters 
 
That third reading by given to Bylaw 1235-21 being a Land Use Bylaw 
Amendment to Rezone NW 15-106-15-W5M from Agricultural “A” to Rural 
Industrial General “RIG”.  
 
CARRIED 
 
 

 Reeve Knelsen recessed the meeting at 2:29 and reconvened the meeting 
at 2:43 p.m.  
 

DELEGATIONS: 
 

7. a) 100A Street Plan (La Crete) 
 

MOTION 21-09-632 
 

MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That administration bring back to the next meeting remaining portion of 100 
A street that isn’t required for future intersections. 
 
CARRIED 
 

DELEGATIONS: 
 

7. b) Biomass Power Plant Locations in Mackenzie County 
 

MOTION 21-09-633 
 

MOVED by Councillor A. Peters 
 
That the Biomass Power Plant Locations in Mackenzie County be received 
for information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

22



Page 15 of 22 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

TENDERS: 5.c) Hamlet of Zama City – Water Treatment Plant Upgrading 
 

MOTION 21-09-634 
Requires 2/3 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the budget for the Hamlet of Zama –Water Treatment Plant Upgrading 
Project be amended by an additional $220,000 with funds coming from the 
Water & Sewer Infrastructure Reserve.  
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 21-09-635 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the ‘Water Treatment Plant Upgrading’ contract be awarded to the 
lowest qualified bidder while staying within budget.  
 
CARRIED 
 

GENERAL 
REPORTS: 
 

8. b) Mitigation Update (Standing Item) 
 

MOTION 21-09-636 
 

MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen  
 
That the mitigation update be received for information.  
 
CARRIED 
 

AGRICULTURE 
SERVICES: 
 

9. a) Buffalo Head/Steephill Flood Control Alternate Route 
 

MOTION 21-09-637 
 

MOVED by Councillor A. Peters 
 
That administration obtain required approvals and agreements with affected 
landowners for the West La Crete Road ditch cleanout. 
 
CARRIED 
 

COMMUNTIY 
SERVICES: 
 

10. a) Zama Trailer Furnishing Project Budget Amendment 
 

MOTION 21-09-638 
 

MOVED by Councillor Driedger 
 
That the 2021 Zama Trailer Furnishings One Time Project Budget be 
amended to include an additional $8,500 with funding coming from the 
General Operating Reserve.  
 
CARRIED 

23



Page 16 of 22 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
COMMUNTIY 
SERVICES: 
 

10. b) ADM051 Facility Rental Policy Amendment   
 

MOTION 21-09-639 
 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That Policy ADM051 the Facility Rental Policy be approved as amended.  
 
CARRIED 
 

COMMUNTIY 
SERVICES: 
 

10. c) Bylaw 1239-21 Fee Schedule Amendment (Mobile Home 
 Rentals) 

MOTION 21-09-640 
Requires 2/3 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That first reading as amended be given to Bylaw 1239-21 being a Fee 
Schedule Bylaw amendment for Mackenzie County. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 21-09-641 
Requires 2/3 

MOVED by Councillor Cardinal 
 
That second reading be given to Bylaw 1239-21 being a Fee Schedule 
Bylaw amendment for Mackenzie County. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 21-09-642 
Requires Unanimous 

MOVED by Councillor A. Peters 
 
That consideration be given to go to third and final reading of Bylaw 1239-
21 being a Fee Schedule Bylaw amendment for Mackenzie County at this 
meeting. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 21-09-643 
Requires 2/3 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That third and final reading be given to Bylaw 1139-21 being a Fee 
Schedule Bylaw amendment for Mackenzie County. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 Reeve Knelsen recessed the meeting at 4:29 p.m. and reconvened the 
meeting at 5:01 p.m. 
 

COMMUNTIY 10. d) Bill Neufeld Commemoration Road Sign - 88 Connector 

24



Page 17 of 22 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

SERVICES: 
 
MOTION 21-09-644 
 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That a commemorative sign be placed at the Heritage Centre in La Crete 
and the Fort Vermilion lean-to museum highlighting the contribution that Bill 
Neufeld had in the paving of the Hwy 88 Connector.  
 
CARRIED 
 

COMMUNTIY 
SERVICES: 
 

10. e) Fort Vermilion Ice Plant Repairs 

MOTION 21-09-645 
 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the Fort Vermilion ice plant repairs be received for information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

COMMUNTIY 
SERVICES: 
 

10. f) Forest Protection Area 

MOTION 21-09-646 
 

MOVED by Councillor  Bateman 
 
That council organize meetings with the 17 municipalities at the 2021 Fall 
RMA conference to discuss the Fire Bans in Hamlets within the Forest 
protection Areas and followed with a meeting with the Minister of Agriculture 
& Forestry.  
 
CARRIED 
 

FINANCE: 
 

11. a) Short Term Borrowing Bylaw 1238-21 

MOTION 21-09-647 
Requires 2/3 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That first reading be given to Bylaw 1238-21, being a bylaw authorizing the 
short-term borrowing of funds with ATB Financial. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 21-09-648 
Requires 2/3 

MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That second reading be given to Bylaw 1238-21, being a bylaw authorizing 
the short-term borrowing of funds with ATB Financial. 
 
CARRIED 

25



Page 18 of 22 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
MOTION 21-09-649 
Requires Unanimous 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman  
 
That consideration be given to go to third reading of Bylaw 1238-21, being a 
bylaw authorizing the short-term borrowing of funds with ATB Financial, at 
this meeting. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 21-09-650 
Requires 2/3 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That third reading be given to Bylaw 1238-21, being a bylaw authorizing the 
short-term borrowing of funds with ATB Financial. 
 
CARRIED 
 

FINANCE: 
 

11. b) New Policy PW043 – Hiring Private Equipment during a  State of 
Local Emergency 
 

MOTION 21-09-651 
 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That Policy PW043 – Hiring Private Equipment during a State of Local 
Emergency be approved as presented. 
 
CARRIED 
 

FINANCE: 
 

11. c) Amend Policy ADM049 - Bursaries 

MOTION 21-09-652 
 

MOVED by Councillor Driedger 
 
That Policy ADM049 - Bursaries be approved as amended. 
 
CARRIED 
 

FINANCE: 
 

11. d) Financial Reports – January 1 – August 31, 2021 

MOTION 21-09-653 
 

MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That the financial reports for January to August 31, 2021 be received for 
information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

FINANCE: 
 

11. e) Expense Claims – Councillors 

MOTION 21-09-654 MOVED by Councillor E. Peters 

26



Page 19 of 22 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

  
That the Councillor expense claims for August 2021 be received for 
information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

FINANCE: 
 

11. f) Expense Claims – Members at Large 

MOTION 21-09-655 
 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the Member at Large Expense Claims for July/August 2021 be 
received for information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

FINANCE: 
 

11. g) 15 Year History – Lodge Requisition CM 21-08-084 

MOTION 21-09-656 
 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the 15 year history of Lodge requisitions be received for information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

FINANCE: 
 

11. h) Tax Recovery Auction – Set Auction Date (HANDOUT) 

MOTION 21-09-657 
Requires 2/3 
 

MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That the Tax Recovery Auction for properties under tax arrears be set for 
February 23, 2022. 
 
CARRIED 
 

OPERATIONS: 
 

12. a) Engineering for 109 Avenue Widening - Request for Capital 
 Funds 
 

MOTION 21-09-658 
Requires 2/3 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That $45,000 from Capital Reserve added to the 2021 Capital Budget for 
engineering 109 Avenue Widening. 
 
CARRIED 
 

UTILITIES: 13. a) None 
 

PLANNING & 
DEVELOPMENT: 

14. a) Fort Vermilion School Division- Land Transaction 
 

27



Page 20 of 22 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

MOTION 21-09-659 
 

MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That administration work with the Fort Vermilion School Division to 
complete a trade and land transfer for properties adjacent to the La Crete 
Distribution Pumphouse and Fort Vermilion Public School. 
 
CARRIED 
 

PLANNING & 
DEVELOPMENT: 

14. b) Asset Management Grant Funding 
 

MOTION 21-09-660 
Requires 2/3 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the 2021 One Time Project Budget be amended to include $125,000, 
for the Asset Management project with $75,000 in funding coming from the 
General Operating Budget Reserve, and $50,000 from Municipal Asset 
Management Program (MAMP) grant. 
 
CARRIED 
 

ADMINISTRATION: 
 

15. a) Appointment of Interim CAO 
 

MOTION 21-09-661 
 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the appointment of Interim CAO be tabled until the next Council 
meeting. 
 
CARRIED 
 
 

ADMINISTRATION: 
 

15. b) Bridge Discussion 
 

MOTION 21-09-662 
 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That administration obtain verbal estimates for the cost of removing the 2 
bridges on highway 88. 
 
CARRIED 
 
 

ADMINISTRATION: 
 

15. c) Ratepayer Meetings 
 

MOTION 21-09-663 
 

MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen  
 
That the ratepayers meeting be received for information. 
 
CARRIED 

28



Page 21 of 22 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE 
REPORTS: 
 

16. a) Council Committee Reports (verbal) 
 
 
 

MOTION 21-09-664 
 

MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That the Council Committee Reports be received for information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE 
REPORTS: 
 

16. b) Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
 
 
 

MOTION 21-09-665 
 

MOVED by Councillor Cardinal 
 
That the Municipal Planning Commission meeting minutes of August 19, 
2021 be received for information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE 
REPORTS: 
 

16. c) Community Services Committee Meeting Minutes 
 
 
 

MOTION 21-09-666 
 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the Community Services Committee meeting minutes of August 19, 
2021 and September 2, 2021 be received for information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

INFORMATION / 
CORRESPONDENCE: 
 

17. a) Information/Correspondence 

MOTION 21-09-667 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That information regarding action item 16-05-354 be put together and a 
meeting requested with AEP at fall RMA convention. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 21-09-668 
 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the information/correspondence items be accepted for information 

29



Page 22 of 22 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

purposes. 
 
CARRIED 
 

NOTICE OF MOTION: 
 

18. a)  

NEXT MEETING 
DATE: 
 

19. a) Next Meeting Dates 
 
 

  Budget Council Meeting 
 October 12, 2021  
 10:00 a.m. 
 Fort Vermilion Council Chambers 
 

  Organizational Meeting  
 October 26, 2021  
 10:00 a.m. 
 Fort Vermilion Council Chambers 
 

ADJOURNMENT: 
 

20. a) Adjournment 
 

MOTION 21-09-669 MOVED by Councillor A. Peters 
 
That the council meeting be adjourned at 6:29 p.m. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 
These minutes will be presented to Council for approval on October 27, 2021. 
 
 
 
   
Joshua Knelsen 
Reeve 

 Lenard Racher 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

30



Agenda Item # 3. b) 
 

Author: C. Simpson Reviewed by:  CAO:  
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: October 27, 2021 

Presented By: Carrie Simpson, Director of Legislative & Support Services 

Title:  Minutes of the October 12, 2021 Budget Council Meeting 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Minutes of the October 12, 2021, Budget Council Meeting are attached. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
 
 
COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
Approved Council Meeting minutes are posted on the County website. 
 
 
POLICY REFERENCES: 
 
 

 

31



Author: C. Simpson Reviewed by:  CAO:  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the minutes of the October 12, 2021 Budget Council Meeting be adopted as 
presented. 

32



 

 
________ 

________ 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

 
Tuesday, October 12, 2021 

10:00 a.m. 
 

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers  
Fort Vermilion, AB 

 
PRESENT: Josh Knelsen 

Walter Sarapuk 
Jacquie Bateman 
Peter F. Braun 
Cameron Cardinal 
David Driedger 
Eric Jorgensen 
Anthony Peters 
Ernest Peters 
Lisa Wardley 
 

Reeve  
Deputy Reeve – virtual –left at 11:01 a.m. 
Councillor  
Councillor  
Councillor  
Councillor  
Councillor – virtual -10:05 a.m. 
Councillor –left meeting 11:56 a.m.  
Councilor  
Councillor  

REGRETS: 
 

 
 

 

ADMINISTRATION: 
 

Len Racher 
Byron Peters 
Carrie Simpson 
Jennifer Batt 
Jeff Simpson 
John Zacharias 
Don Roberts 
Caitlin Smith 
Grant Smith 
Willie Schmidt 
Colleen Sarapuk 
 

Chief Administrative Officer  
Director of Projects and Infrastructure  
Director of Legislative Services  
Director of Finance 
Director of Operations 
Director of Utilities 
Director of Community Services  
Manager of Planning and Development  
Agricultural Fieldman 
Manager of Fleet Maintenance 
Administrative Officer /Recording Secretary 

ALSO PRESENT: Members of the public 
 
Minutes of the Regular Council meeting for Mackenzie County held on October 12, 2021 in the 
Council Chambers at the Fort Vermilion County Office. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 

1. a) Call to Order 

 Reeve Knelsen called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 
 

AGENDA: 
 

2. a) Adoption of Agenda 
 

MOTION 21-10-670 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the agenda be adopted as presented. 

33



Page 2 of 10 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
BUDGET COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, October 12, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

  
CARRIED 
 

  
 

3. a) None 
 

CLOSED MEETING: 
 

4.  Closed Meeting 

MOTION 21-10-671 MOVED by Councillor A. Peters 
 
That Council move into a closed meeting at 10:01 a.m. to discuss the 
following: 
 
 4.a) Veterinary Services Contract 
 4.b) Personnel 
 
CARRIED 
 

 The following individuals were present during the closed meeting 
discussion. (MGA Section 602.08(1)(6)) 
• All Members of Council 
• Len Racher, Chief Administrative Officer 
• Byron Peters, Director of Projects & Infrastructure  
• Jennifer Batt, Director of Finance  
• Jeff Simpson, Director of Operations 
• Carrie Simpson, Director of Legislative Services  
• Don Roberts, Director of Community Services  
• Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning & Development 
• Colleen Sarapuk, Administrative Officer 
• Chad Roberts, Communication Coordinator  
• John Zacharias, Director of Utilities  
 
Administration left closed meeting at 10:14 a.m. 
 

MOTION 21-10-672 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That Council move out of a closed meeting at 11:01 a.m.  
 
CARRIED 
 

CLOSED MEETING: 4.a) Veterinary Services Contract 
 

MOTION 21-10-673 MOVED by Councillor E. Peters 
 
That the Frontier Veterinary Services Contract be extended for one year 
ending December 31, 2022. 
 

34



Page 3 of 10 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
BUDGET COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, October 12, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

CARRIED 
 

CLOSED MEETING: 4.b) Personnel 
 

MOTION 21-10-674 MOVED by Deputy Reeve Sarapuk 
 
That the Interim CAO be approved as discussed. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 The chair recessed the meeting at 11:01 am and reconvened the meeting at 
11:09 a.m. 
 

TENDERS: 5.a) Storm Pond “A” Construction Tenders 
 

MOTION 21-10-675 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the Storm Pond “A” Tenders- Envelope #1 be opened. 
 
CARRIED 
 
Bidder Required Documents 
Norther Road Builders All required Documents 

 
 

MOTION 21-10-676 MOVED by Councillor Driedger 
 
That the Storm Pond “A” Tenders- Envelope #2 be opened for the qualified 
bidders. 
 
CARRIED 
 
Bidder Schedule A Schedule B Schedule C Total 
Northern 
Road 
Builders 

$231,590 $401,827.50 $469,695 $1,103,112.50 

 
 

MOTION 21-10-677 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That the Strom Pond “A” Budget be amended by $40,000 with funds coming 
from the Water and Sewer Infrastructure Reserve. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 21-10-678 MOVED by Councillor E. Peters 

35



Page 4 of 10 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
BUDGET COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, October 12, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
That the Storm Pond “A” contracts be awarded to the lowest qualified 
bidders while staying within budget. 
 
CARRIED 
 

TENDERS: 5.b) Request For Proposals – Road Maintenance – Grader Service 
 

MOTION 21-10-679 MOVED by Councillor A Peters 
 
That the ‘Road Maintenance – Grader Service’ Tenders - Envelope #1 be 
opened. 
 
CARRIED 
 
Bidder Required Documents 
B. Hinson Contracting All required documents 
Boss Services Ltd Missing Business License  

 
 

MOTION 21-10-680 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the unqualified (due to missing Mackenzie County Business License) 
‘Road Maintenance – Grader Service’ Tenders be returned to the senders 
without opening Envelope #2. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 21-10-681 MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the ‘Road Maintenance – Grader Service’ Tenders - Envelope #2 be 
opened for the qualified bidders. 
 
CARRIED 
 
Bidder Schedule A (Zama) Schedule B (Chateh)  
B. Hinson Contracting 
Ltd. 

$250/hour $285/hour 

 
 

MOTION 21-10-682 MOVED by Councillor Driedger 
 
That the ‘Road Maintenance – Grader Service’ bids be declined and 
administration continue to investigate options for maintenance on the Zama 
and Chateh road.  
 

36



Page 5 of 10 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
BUDGET COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, October 12, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

CARRIED 
 

 The chair recessed the meeting at 11:59 a.m. and reconvened the meeting 
at 12:41 p.m. 
 

TENDERS: 5.c) Fort Vermilion Waste Transfer Station Caretaker Contract 
 

MOTION 21-10-683 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That the Fort Vermilion Waste Transfer Station Caretaker Contract 
Envelope #1 be opened. 
 
CARRIED 
 
Bidder Required Documents 
Nigel Cardinal All required Documents  
Trudy Derksen All required Documents 

 
 

MOTION 21-10-684 MOVED by Councillor E. Peters 
 
That the Fort Vermilion Waste Transfer Station Caretaker Contract 
Envelope #2 be opened. 
 
CARRIED 
 
Bidder Cost 
Nigel Cardinal $1500/ month $54,000 for 36 months 
Trudy Derksen $2000/ month $72,000 for 36 months 

 
 

MOTION 21-10-685 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That the Fort Vermilion Waste Transfer Station Caretaker contract be 
awarded to the lowest qualified bidder while staying within budget. 
 
CARRIED 
 

GENERAL REPORT: 6.a) None 
 

AGRICULTURE 
SERVICES: 
 

7. a) None 
 

COMMUNITY 
SERVICES: 
 

8. a) None 
 

37



Page 6 of 10 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
BUDGET COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, October 12, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

FINANCE: 
 

9. a) Buffalo Head Drainage Council Motion #18-11-885 
 

MOTION 21-10-686 
 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That administration allocate $2,294,400 from Unrestricted Surplus to the 
General Capital Reserve in the amount of $1,540,000, and the Surface 
Water Management Reserve in the amount of $ 754,400. 
 
CARRIED 
 

CLOSED MEETING: 
 

4.  Closed Meeting 

MOTION 21-10-687 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That Council move into a closed meeting at 12:52 p.m. to discuss the 
following: 
 
 4.b) Personnel 
 
CARRIED 
 

 The following individuals were present during the closed meeting 
discussion. (MGA Section 602.08(1)(6)) 
• All Members of Council other that Councillor A. Peters and Deputy 
 Reeve Sarapuk 
• Len Racher, Chief Administrative Officer  
• Jennifer Batt, Director of Finance  
• Jeff Simpson, Director of Operations 
• Carrie Simpson, Director of Legislative Services  
• Don Roberts, Director of Community Services  
• Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning & Development 
• Colleen Sarapuk, Administrative Officer 
• John Zacharias, Director of Utilities  
• Willie Schmidt, Fleet Maintenance Manager  
• Grant Smith, Agricultural Fieldman 
 

MOTION 21-10-688 MOVED by Councillor Driedger 
 
That Council move out of a closed meeting at 1:09 p.m. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 21-10-689 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the job description for the Equipment Operator II in Zama be modified 
and re advertised as an out of scope position. 

38



Page 7 of 10 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
BUDGET COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, October 12, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
CARRIED 
 

FINACE 9.b)  Cheque Registers-August 14-October 8, 2021 Electronic Funds 
 Transfer August –September, 2021 
 

MOTION 21-10-690 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the cheque registers from August 14 – October 8, 2021 and Electronic 
Funds Transfers for August 1-September 30, 2021 be received for 
information.  
 
CARRIED 
 

FINACE 9.c)  Financial Repots  
 

MOTION 21-10-691 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the Office Shower project be renamed to Council Chambers Windows. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 21-10-692 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the Financial Reports for January – September 30, 2021 be received 
for information.  
 
CARRIED 
 

FINANCE: 
 

9. d) Review 2021 One Time Projects – Carry Forwards 

MOTION 21-10-693 
Requires 2/3 

MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That administration incorporate the 2021 One Time Carry Forward projects 
in the Draft 2022 Operating budget as discussed. 
 
CARRIED 
 

FINANCE: 
 

9. e) Review 2022 One Time Projects 

MOTION 21-10-694 
Requires 2/3 

MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That the review of 2022 On Time Projects discussion be TABLED for future 
discussion. 
 
CARRIED 

39



Page 8 of 10 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
BUDGET COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, October 12, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
 Reeve Knelsen recessed the meeting at 1:59 p.m. and reconvened the 

meeting at 2:27 p.m.  
 

FINANCE: 
 

9. f) Draft 2022 Operating Budget (HANDOUT) 

MOTION 21-10-695 
Requires 2/3 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the Draft 2022 Operating Budget be received for information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

OPERATIONS: 
 

10. a) None 
 

UTILITIES: 
 

11. a) None 

PLANNING & 
DEVELOPMENT: 
 

12. a) 100A Street Plan (La Crete) 
 

MOTION 21-10-696 
 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That Administration proceed with the sale of the closed portions of 100A 
Street to adjacent landowners at assessed value with all associated costs 
being borne by the buyer with the exception of those costs associated with 
registration of a waterline URW where required. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 21-10-697 
 

MOVED by Councillor E. Peters 
 
That the north portions of 100A Street (adjacent landowners) be sold back 
for the same price it was originally purchased to the adjacent landowners 
with all associated costs being borne by the applicant. 
 
CARRIED 
 

PLANNING & 
DEVELOPMENT: 
 

12. b) FVSD Bus Stop Proposal 
 

MOTION 21-10-698 
 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That Mackenzie supports the Fort Vermilion School Division bus stop 
signage in the hamlets. 
 
CARRIED 
 

40



Page 9 of 10 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
BUDGET COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, October 12, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

ADMINISTRATION: 13. a) RMA Fall Convention Update 
 

MOTION 21-10-699 MOVED by Councillor Driedger 
 
That meetings be requested with the following Ministers at the RMA Fall 
Convention: 
 
Minister of Infrastructure  Birthing Centre  

 
Minister of Environment Bridge Campsite  

Crown Land Recreation  
Tree Salvage  
Hay Zama Bison 
 

Minister of Municipal Affairs Municipal Downloading 
Petition  
Taxation Lease Lands (non energy) 
Disaster Services Funding Agreement 
 

Minister of Ag & Forestry  Tree Salvage 
Fire Ban 
 

K-Division  Enhanced Police 
 

 
CARRIED 
 

INFORMATION / 
CORRESPONDENCE: 
 

15. a) Information/Correspondence 

MOTION 21-10-700 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the information/correspondence items be accepted for information 
purposes.  
 
CARRIED 
 

CLOSED MEETING: 
 

4.  Closed Meeting 

MOTION 21-10-701 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That Council move into a closed meeting at 4:31 p.m. to discuss the 
following: 
 
 4.b) Personnel 
 

41



Page 10 of 10 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 
BUDGET COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, October 12, 2021 
 

 
________ 

________ 

CARRIED 
 

 The following individuals were present during the closed meeting 
discussion. (MGA Section 602.08(1)(6)) 
• All Members of Council other that Councillor A. Peters and Deputy 
 Reeve Sarapuk 
 

MOTION 21-10-702 
 

MOVED by Councillor Driedger 
 
That Council move into a closed meeting at 4:55 p.m.  
 
CARRIED 
 

NOTICE OF MOTION: 
 

16. a) None 

NEXT MEETING 
DATE: 
 

17. a) Next Meeting Dates 
 
 

  Organizational Meeting  
 October 26, 2021  
 10:00 a.m. 
 Fort Vermilion Council Chambers 
 

  Regular Council Meeting  
 October 27, 2021  
 10:00 a.m. 
 Fort Vermilion Council Chambers 
 

ADJOURNMENT: 
 

20. a) Adjournment 
 

MOTION 21-10-703 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That the council meeting be adjourned at 4:56 p.m. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 
These minutes will be presented to Council for approval on October 27, 2021. 
 
 
 
   
Joshua Knelsen 
Reeve 

 Lenard Racher 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

42



Agenda Item # 8. a)  
 

Author: C. Sarapuk Reviewed by:  CAO:  
 

  

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: October 27, 2021 

Presented By: Len Racher, Chief Administrative Officer  

Title:  CAO & Director Reports for September, 2021 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The CAO and Director reports for September, 2021 are attached for information. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
N/A 
 
 
POLICY REFERENCES: 
 
N/A 
 

43



Author: C. Sarapuk Reviewed by:  CAO:  
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
  Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the CAO & Director Reports for September, 2021 be received for information. 

44



45



46



Monthly Report to the CAO 

For the month of September, 2021 

From:  Byron Peters, 

                      Director of Projects & Infrastructure/Deputy CAO 

PLANNING, PROJECTS & INFRASTRUCTURE 

Strategic Priorities 

Program/Activity/Project Timeline Comments 
Land Use Framework TBA 

 
The Access Management Plan (AMP) for 
Bistcho is in the early stages. Provided 
feedback to AEP for Bistcho Lake sub-
regional plan. Has been quiet for several 
months now. 

Community Infrastructure 
Master Plans & Offsite 
Levies 

IMPs complete 
Levies to be 
completed in 
Q3 2021 

Currently tabled. Will review levy rates 
once various projects have been 
tendered/awarded.  

Municipal Development 
Plan 

Started Q3 
2020 

Joint project. See Caitlin’s report for project 
update. 

Asset Management Ongoing Working our way through priorities and 
steadily adding more assets and data into 
a common database. Received a $50k 
grant from FCM to further advance our AM 
progress. 

 

Annual Operating Programs, Projects and Activities 

Program/Activity/Project Timeline Comments 
Economic Development   Have not had the time/resources to focus 

on formal ec dev. Relying on REDI at this 
time for most overarching items. Do meet 
with some business & share info 

101 Ave rebuild & pave done Construction complete. 

100 St & 109 Ave 
Intersection Improvement 

done Construction complete. 

100 St & 94 Ave Traffic 
Light 

end October Currently in progress, and expected to be 
complete by the end of October. 

Gravel Crushing  Overburden removal going well. 
Developing crushing plan for 2022.  

Fort Vermilion (Wop May) 
Airport Recovery 

 Project is taking longer than anticipated. 
There will be a long lead time on some 

47



electrical components, so expect project 
completion in 2022. 
 

Storm Pond A (LC)  Tender awarded & construction started. 
Prioritizing the pond & ditching to ensure 
they function prior to freeze-up. If weather 
cooperates will install underground 
components.  

LC North Sanitary Engineering 
Q1 2022 

Engineering design well underway. 
Anticipating design completion/tendering in 
February 2022.  

 
 
Personnel Update:         
No changes in the department. 

 
 
Other Comments:                 
I continue to work with John on a variety of utilities projects, and support Caitlin with some 
of the more technical/engineering/infrastructure components of subdivisions and 
development. Working with Jeff on the planning for a few road/public works projects. 
 
We recently learned that there is a need to invest quite a lot of energy into the variety of 
dispositions at Atlas Landing. There are 5 or 6 separate dispositions that require attention, 
which will become quite a project. 
 
I have spent a lot of time reviewing and finding information to support legal documents, 
contracts, agreements, etc. It seems like there is a never ending list of technical/legal 
work to complete. A couple of litigation items took a fair amount of time.  
 
As we continue to work through infrastructure planning for La Crete, a more defined road 
plan and drainage (storm water management) plan seem to be the two most urgent 
issues, now that a plan is well in place for sanitary sewer. Administration will be proposing 
two separate projects to address these items in the upcoming budget deliberations.  
 
Some projects that were expected to be completed in 2021 will roll over into 2022, due to 
an assortment of delays on our end, engineers, suppliers, insurance/DRP approvals, etc.  
 
There was a lot of work completed by many of my colleagues to successfully conduct the 
election, so thank you to everyone that organized/helped leading up to and on election 
day.  
 
Flood mitigation work continues to proceed well, thanks to the contributions of many 
people. Lots of work remains, but a lot of work has been completed as well. A large 
portion of design and engineering work has been completed, tenders drafted, and other 
legal work in the background.   
 

 

48



REPORT TO THE CAO 
 
For the Month September 2021 
 
From:   Carrie Simpson, Director Legislative & Support Services 
 
Meetings Attended 

• 2021-09-03 Manager Meeting 
• 2021-09-09 Meeting with Vet Services re: Contract 
• 2021-09-09 Manager Meeting  
• 2021-09-14 Regular Council Meeting (virtual) 
• 2021-09-15 Team Meeting 
• 2021-09-27 Budget Meeting with Jen 

 
Council 

• Preparing for various meetings of Council, correspondence, etc. 
• Research and responding to inquiries. 
• Preparation for Organizational Meeting October. 
• Registration for the upcoming 2021 RMA Fall Convention (November 23-26, 

2021) 
 
Appeal Boards 

• No appeals this month 
• CARB Appeal set for November 10, 2021- Complainant non compliant with 

submitting disclosure evidence by required date. 
 

 
Bylaws/Policies/Reports/Publications: 

• Review of Bylaw/Policies not uploaded to Docushare. 
 
Enhanced Policing 

• Regular updates to Council are scheduled for the second council meeting of 
each month. 

• RCMP services are available at the La Crete office on Wednesdays. 
 
Emergency Management 

• Nothing to report at this time 
 

Communications: 
• Maintain and respond to County emails. 

 
Human Resources: 

• Performance Evaluation – Records Management 
• Preparation for Performance Evaluation for other Administrative Staff 
• Interviews for Term for Records Department  
• Working on meeting with Administrative staff Fort Vermilion/La Crete 

 
Municipal Elections: 

49



• Nomination Day 
• MA Connect input for 

Nominations 
• Preparation for training of 

Election workers 
• Arranging for training for 

Election workers/meals, 
etc. 

• Photographer booked for Organization Meeting 
• Ordering of Supplies  

 
 

Events/Community Engagement: 
• Nothing to report for this timeframe. 

 
Other: 

• Assisting legislative and support services department staff (ie. Human 
Resources, Records Management, Information Technology, etc.) 

• Ongoing form review and updating. 
• Preparing for various meetings. 
• Meeting coordination. 
• Assisting other departments as required. 
• Online Apparel Ordering 

50



MONTHLY REPORT TO THE CAO 
 
For the Month Ending September, 2021 
 
From: Jennifer Batt 

Director of Finance  
 
Annual Operating Programs, Projects and Activities 
 
Program/Activity/Project Timeline Comments 
2021 Operating & Capital  Ongoing Review Operating Budget to Actual.  

Review Capital Budget to Actual. 
Developing 2021 Budget book. 
Compile 2022 Budget information. Meet with 
various Directors re: 2022 budgets.  
Distribute reports to CAO & Directors for 
reporting. 
2021 Tax collection and review, and reporting 
to council. 
 

MSI Reporting Ongoing 2020 SFE submitted, awaiting for approval  

Disaster Recovery 
Program 
 
2018 Peace River Ice 
Jam 
 
2019 Chuckegg Wildfire 
 
 
 
 
 
2020 Peace River Ice 
Jam / Overland Flood 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ongoing  
 
 
Review ongoing projects. 
 
 
2 Projects submitted under review. 1 project 
confirmed 80% funding to be released. 
 
Administration is still gathering requested 
information on road project. 
 
Work w various GOA agencies on the flood 
recovery plan and funding streams available. 
 
Attend one on one meetings. 
 
Work with Project manager, site supervisor on 
sites development, and quote packages 
required. 
 
1 mobile home moved to site. 5 additional 
homes scheduled for October. Meet with 

51



 
 
2021 Overland Flood 
 
 
 
2021 Sever Storm 
Overland Flooding 

Boreal Housing regarding their properties. 
 
DRP Part 1 & 2 application submission 
completed in July.  Continue to gather 
reporting data once approved for submission, 
 
Provide additional date – location to DRP  
 
 

Annual Report Ongoing Compile past years information for Annual 
report, including major events of 2019 & 2020 
Disasters. 

Attend Various meeting  Regular Council meetings September 14 
 
Managers Meeting – September 3,9,16 
 
Mitigation & One on one Meetings –  
  September 8,10,15,16,29 
Mitigation Team Meeting 
  September 10x2,27 
Mitigation GOA Meetings –  
   September 13,27 
 
Municipal Affairs –  
       Mackenzie County Restructuring –  
       September 9, 21, 23 
 
Administration 
  September 2,17,20,21,23,27,28,30 
 

 

52



MONTHLY REPORT TO THE CAO 
 
For the Month of September 2021 
 
From: John Zacharias 

Director of Utilities 
 
Annual Operating Programs, Projects and Activities 
 
Program/Activity/Project Timeline Comments 
Water Distribution and 
Wastewater Collection 
Maintenance  

Oct/21 Maintenance partially finished due to 
busyness on other things. Majority done. 

 
Capital Projects 
 
Projects Timeline Comments 
FV-Frozen Water Service 
Repairs 

Nov/21 
 

Two trickle systems remain to be repaired but 
administration will complete a review of aqua-
flo box services to be repaired as well. 

Potable Water Supply 
North of the Peace River 

Dec/21 Awaiting grant funding opportunities. 

Waterline Blue Hills Dec/21 Awaiting grant funding opportunities. 

Diversion License Review Dec/21 This has been silent for a while as I transition 
into new position. Will follow up with AE. 
Have requested to carry forward item in the 
budget. 

La Crete Future Water 
Supply Concept 

Dec/21 Project will somewhat align with Well #4 
project. Report from AE to AEP will have 
some information in it for this study. 

LC – Well #4 Dec/21 72 hr aquifer test completed. AE finishing 
report to AEP. Initial design discussion has 
taken place. 

LC – North Sanitary Trunk 
Sewer 

May/21 
 

Project is mostly in Byron’s department. Will 
be more involved once design phase begins. 

ZA – Sewage Forcemain Nov/21 AMWWP project has been cancelled and 
administration is finalizing the funding 
agreement to allocate the funds to mitigation.  

ZA- Distribution Pump 
House Upgrades 

Nov/21 Worked with engineers to lower scope of 
project. Was awarded at Sept 12 council to 
AGS Mechanical with completion in 2022. 

53



ZA- Lift Station Upgrades Nov/21 Will apply for grant funding in a future year as 
per council motion. 

LC/FV – Hill Crest School 
Waterline Extension 

Jun/21 Project is complete with warranty running to 
Nov 12, 2022. 

LC – WTP Tower Sept/21 Project in progress. Awaiting NavCanada 
approval. Construction in October. 

FV – Rural Truckfill Pump 
Install 

Dec/21 Project is awarded and waiting on delivery of 
pumps. Starting when equipment arrives. 

 
Personnel Update: 
Working at getting more comfortable with engineers and project decision making. Got 
our operating budgets looked at and presented to finance.  
 
Other Comments: 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
John Zacharias 
Director of Utilities 
Mackenzie County 

54



Monthly Report to the CAO 

For the month of September, 2021 

From:  Jeff SIMPSON, B. Comm, GDM 

Director of Operations 

Annual Operating Programs, Projects and Activities 

Program/Activity/Project Timeline Comments 
Administration Ongoing Capital Projects (Current and Carry 

Forward) continue to proceed and all are 
anticipated to be completed on schedule this 
year. 

Airport Maintenance Ongoing Regular maintenance as required. 
Flood Mitigation Project Ongoing One on One Meetings continuing as 

required.  Secondary and subsequent 
meetings are starting to incur as houses are 
prepped and relocated to Phase 1. 

Gravel Program (2021) Ongoing Chateh Road re-gravelling completed.   
Road Maintenance Ongoing Spot gravelling program continues as 

required. 
 
DRP Projects relating to 2020 Flood 
completed. 
 
Dust control (Oil) program completed for 
County.  
 
Fall pothole program completed. 
 
Traffic signs damaged/broken replaced 
throughout the County. 
 
Roadside / Site mowing completed for year. 
 
New Roads program continues with the 
supply of gravel as required. 

Spring Preparations / 
Overland Flooding 

Ongoing Project awarded on day labour basis to 3 
different vendors in North and South.    
Approximately 40 culverts identified for 
replacement to date.  Ag Dept also 
completing various culvert and ditch 
upgrade projects as a function of this 
project. 

Winter Preparations Ongoing Manufactured fines ordered and mixing 
started with salt for stockpile. 

 

55



Meetings Attended: 

Date Description 
Sep. 3/21 Managers Meeting 
Sep. 7/21 Staffing Interview 
Sep. 8/21 Employee Performance Assessments 
Sep. 8/21 FV Mitigation Meeting – One on One 
Sep. 9/21 Managers Meeting 
Sep. 10/21 FV Mitigation Meeting – Team Meeting 
Sep. 14/21 Council Meeting 
Sep. 15/21 FV Mitigation Meeting – One on One 
Sep. 15/21 Public Works Team Meeting 
Sep. 15/21 FV Mitigation Meeting – One on One 
Sep. 16/21 Staffing Interview 
Sep. 16/21 FV Mitigation Meeting – One on One 
Sep. 16/21 Managers Meeting 
Sep. 23/21 FV Mitigation Meeting – Document Review 
Sep. 23/21 FV Mitigation Meeting – One on One 
Sep. 27/21 FV Mitigation Meeting – Team Meeting 
Sep. 28/21 DRP Site Meeting – Peace River Erosion Control (WSP) 
Sep. 29/21 FV Mitigation Meeting – One on One 
Sep. 30/21 Budget / Finance Meeting 

 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
Jeff SIMPSON, B. Comm, GDM 
Director of Operations 

56



Monthly Report to the CAO 

For the month of September, 2021 

From:  Caitlin Smith, 

Manager of Planning and Development 

Strategic Priorities for Planning & Development 

Program/Activity/Project Timeline Comments 
Land Use Framework TBA Joint project report; see Byron’s report 

for project update 
Municipal Development 
Plan, Land Use Bylaw, and 
Fort Vermilion Area 
Redevelopment Plan 

Q4 2021 Administration meets with the 
consultant bi-weekly. O2 is actively 
updating the Land Use Bylaw and 
Municipal Development Plan. Open 
Houses occurred in September, there 
was a poor turn out in all locations 
totaling 10 attendees all together. The 
draft LUB and MDP are available to the 
public for comment online. 
Administration would like to proceed 
with first reading of the LUB and MDP 
at the next Council or COW meeting. 
 
The Fort Vermilion Area 
Redevelopment Plan public meeting 
dates will start in the new year. 

 

Annual Operating Programs, Projects and Activities 

Program/Activity/Project Timeline Comments 
La Crete Area Structure 
Plan Revision 

Q4 2022 Administration will request an updated 
ASP for 2022 as an approved 
development will be changing the 
transportation plan. 

100A Street Land 
Acquirement (Future Main 
Street Widening in La 
Crete) 

Q4 2021 Administration has engaged Borderline 
Surveys regarding the subdivision and 
URW survey plan. Administration will 
proceed with contacting adjacent 
landowners to offer to purchase the 
parcels. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

57



Personnel Update:         
All positions within the department are filled. 
 

 
Other Comments:                 
Development has not slowed at all, we are expecting a record amount of development 
permits by year end. Subdivisions are at a record high with the number of applications 
received. 
 
Administration has starting receiving requests for subdivision inspection for multi-lot 
subdivisions. Inspections will take place if weather is permitting, if there is too much 
snow on the ground, we will have to wait for spring. 
 
Budget is in full swing, staff time has been spent planning the 2022 department 
operating budget and one-time requests. 
 
The Planning and Development department will be utilizing the new Munisight 
Planner module starting January 2022. This is at no cost to the municipality as the 
existing module is now considered obsolete. Staff training is expected to occur 
November 2021. 
 
Administration was requested by the Municipal Planning Commission to hold an open 
house regarding uses along 100 Street in La Crete and heavy traffic. 10 members of 
the public attended, their thoughts were the following: 
 

- The Super J/Apple Drugs access is too wide causing an increased risk of 
accidents. Suggested that the County work with the businesses to narrow the 
access. 

- Many businesses, particularly industrial types, have accesses on 100 Street as 
their primary access, often in multiple locations. The County should work with 
industrial businesses to alter their accesses and routes. 

- The La Crete Chamber of Commerce is an important resource for businesses in 
the area, the County should work with them to educate businesses on efficient 
access routes. 

 
I have been supporting Legislative Services with elections planning and as a Deputy 
Returning Officer. 
 
I am supporting the Mitigation team with legal review, permitting, and lease 
agreements. 
 

 

58



 REPORT TO CAO 
September, 2021 
From: Grant Smith, Agricultural Fieldman  
 
 
Annual Operating Programs, Projects and Activities 
 

Program/Activity/Project Timeline Comments 

Roadside Spraying 2021 Roadside Spraying commenced June 10th, 
completion date was July 10th. Quality of 
work was very satisfactory. Herbicides were 
Clearview, Navius & Roundup. Some 
roadsides were sprayed with Roundup to 
control grass. This aids in road maintenance. 

Weed Inspection 2021 One Seasonal Weed Inspector has been 
hired. Commencement date is May 3rd. 
Duties include Field Inspections, Roadside 
Grass Seeding, Beaver Dam removal, 
Clubroot Inspections, Shelter belt tree 
distribution, Water Pump rentals, etc. 

Ag Land Development 
Proposals 

2021 A land lease agreement was signed with Tom 
Braun of High Level on June 8th. Length of 
lease is 15 years. Expiry date is 2035. 

Emergency Livestock 
Response Plan 

2021 The Draft has been completed, and will be 
forwarded to AEMA for ratification. 

Seed Cleaning Plant 
Inspections 

2021 Seed Cleaning Plants were inspected on 
January 7th.  
Frontier Seed Plant: 93% 
Sunrise Mobile Plant: 92% 
Both plants are maintained well and run 
efficiently. The High Level Plant was not 
inspected due to renovations. 

Shelterbelt Program June, 
2021 

Trees were picked up in Fairview on June 4th. 
Approximately 2500 seedlings were received 
and distributed to County Ratepayers. 
Application deadline is December 31st. 

VSI Program 2021 Mackenzie County is still participating in the 
program. Council agreed to continue at the 
current 50% rate. 

Water Pumping Program October 
31, 2021 

The water pumping program commenced on 
April 1st. Fall is the busy rental season. The 
program ends on October 31st. The rental 
rates double on November 1st. 

59



Roadside Mowing 2021 Overall, the Roadside Mowing program was 
satisfactory. There was some minor culvert 
damage in the Beaver ranch area. Mowing 
contracts have expired and will be extended 
with the option year in 2022. 

Fall Channel Maintenance 2021 Flood control channels are being inspected 
and contractors will be hired to mulch/mow 
overgrown channels. This is regular channel 
maintenance done in late summer/fall. 
Administration also inspects for soil erosion. 

 
 
Capital Projects 
 
Projects Timeline Comments 
   

 
Personnel Update: 
 

 
Other Comments: 
 

 

60



Agenda Item # 10.a) 
 

Author: D. Roberts Reviewed by:  CAO:  
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: October 27, 2021 

Presented By: Don Roberts, Director of Community Services 

Title:  Waste Transfer Station Haul Contract Extension 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The Waste Transfer Station Service Agreement was awarded to L & P Disposals Inc. in 
December 31, 2017 for a two year term ending December 31, 2019.  Two-one year 
extensions were granted by Council expiring on December 31, 2021.  
 
The signed contract for this service includes the following clause: 
 
 “Completion Date” means the 31st day of December, or such later date as 
 may be agreed upon in writing by the parties; 
 
The original Tender stated: 
 

Clause 8.16… 
Mackenzie County may, prior to the expiry of the contract time, extend the 
contract time, twice only, for a further 1 year period subject to the same terms, 
covenants and conditions as contained within. 
 

The 2016 estimated quantities of solid waste hauled from each transfer station have 
existed since the 2017 contract. These numbers have dramatically changed since then.   
 
Attached is a letter from L & P Disposals Inc. requesting that Mackenzie County extend 
the contract for one year.  The terms of the contract would remain the same, however 
they do request if the landfill tipping fees increase during this year that the price be raised 
to reflect the increase for the 6 and 7 yard bins. 
 
Since the new implementation of fees at the Waste Transfer stations, the future of 
Mackenzie County Transfer Stations must be considered.   
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 

61



Author: D. Roberts Reviewed by:  CAO:  
 

 
Option 1 
 

a) Direct administration to extend the Waste Transfer Station Service Agreement 
with L & P Disposals Inc. for a one year term ending on December 31, 2022, 
subject to an increase to cover the cost of landfill tipping fee increases. 

 
b) Direct the Community Services Committee to analyze Mackenzie County’s Solid 

Waste requirements at our Transfer Stations and bring back its findings and 
recommendations by July 2022 prior to future budget deliberations.   

 
Option 2 
 

Direct administration to put the Waste Transfer Station Service Agreement out for 
tender. 

 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
2022 Operating Budget. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
 
POLICY REFERENCES: 
 
Policy FIN025 - Purchase Authority Directive and Tendering Process 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 

 
Motion 1 
That the Waste Transfer Station Service Agreement with L & P Disposals Inc. be 
extended for a one year term ending December 31, 2022 as per the contract completion 
date clause. 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 

Motion 2  
That the Community Services Committee analyze Mackenzie County’s Solid Waste 
requirements at the Waste Transfer Stations and bring back its findings and 
recommendations no later than August 2022, prior to future budget deliberations.   

62



63



64



Agenda Item #10.b) 
 

Author: D. Roberts Reviewed by:  CAO:  
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: October 27, 2021 

Presented By: Don Roberts, Director of Community Services 

Title:  2021 Campground Caretakers Bonus 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The caretaker contracts state the following: 
 

B. MACKENZIE COUNTY SHALL: 
III. Upon a successful year end evaluation by the Director of Community Services and 

Operations, and a positive recommendation by the Community Services Committee, a 
25% bonus of the total revenue will be paid to the Contractor (Bonus maximum 
$8,000).  A successful yearend will be determined on the basis of customer and 
County satisfaction as well as meeting and/or exceeding the terms of this contract. 
(Refer to Mackenzie Country Policy COM001) 

 
Community Services Committee made the following motion 
CS-21-10-92 
That a recommendation be made to Council to approve the Campground Caretakers 
Bonus as presented. 

 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
Approve campground caretaker bonuses as recommended by the Community Services 
Committee 

65



Author: D. Roberts Reviewed by:  CAO:  
 

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
2021 Operating budget 
 
2021 Year  
Caretaker Evaluation Percentage Year End Revenue Bonus Amount 
Hutch Lake - 98.57% $25,865.00 $6,466.25 

Machesis Lake - 98.57% $11,125.00 $2,781.00 

Wadlin-Lake - 98.57% $58,193 $8,000 

 
 

Total Revenue Per Campground  

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Hutch Lake $4,975.00 $19,242.00 $14,790.00 $21,380.00 $28,900.00
Wadlin Lake $64,816.00 $70,418.00 $45,702.00 $24,088.00 $44,807.00
Machesis Lake $1,950.00 $4,460.00 $4,595.00 $475.00 $6,070.00

$0.00
$10,000.00
$20,000.00
$30,000.00
$40,000.00
$50,000.00
$60,000.00
$70,000.00
$80,000.00

 
COMMUNICATIONS / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
 
POLICY REFERENCE: 
 
Policy COM001 Parks Caretaker Bonus 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the 2020 Campground Caretaker bonuses be approved as follows: 

• Hutch Lake - $6,466.25 
• Machesis Lake - $2,781 
• Wadlin Lake - $8,000 

66



Mackenzie County 
 
Title Parks Caretaker Bonus Policy Policy No: COM001 
 
Legislation Reference Municipal Government Act, Section 18 
 
Purpose 
 
To establish procedures for applying a bonus to the County’s park caretakers for 
exceptional work completed throughout a season. 
 
 

POLICY STATEMENT AND GUIDELINES 
 
1. Definitions: 
 

For the purpose of this Policy terms shall be defined as follows: 
 

a) A Caretaker is a contract operator at a Mackenzie County park. 
 

b) Caretaker Evaluation Form is a form created by the County to evaluate the 
performance of a parks caretaker.  The form will be completed by a County 
representative.  The form is attached in Appendix “A”. 

 
c) County Park refers to a campground facility within Mackenzie County 

boundaries.  The County presently has three campgrounds with caretakers 
which are: Wadlin Lake, Hutch Lake and Machesis Lake. 

 
d) Bonus – a full bonus will be 25% of all the fees collected at the County Park 

up to a maximum of $8,000 (maximum applies to all contracts entered into 
after January 1, 2015). 

 
e) Community Services Committee is a group of Councillors selected to 

represent Council as per their terms of reference. 
 
2. Bonus Structure:  

 
a) The County administration will complete the caretaker’s evaluation form regularly 

throughout the operating months to determine the quality of the caretaker’s 
performance in relation to their duties. 
 

b) At the end of the season the County’s administration will compile all the results 
from the evaluation forms and generate a summary sheet with an overall grading 
mark.  

 
 

67



Mackenzie County Policy COM001  Page 2 
Parks Caretaker Bonus Policy 

 
 

 
c) Administration will recommend to the Community Services Committee the 

proposed bonus based on the grading mark as follows: 
- 90% or above will receive full bonus 
- Each percentage below 90% receives 1% less of the bonus 

 
d) The Community Services Committee will receive administration recommendations 

on caretaker’s bonus and review any additional information to determine the 
amount of bonus each park caretaker will receive. 

 
3. Administrative Responsibility : 
 
Chief Administrative Officer or designate is responsible for compliance with this policy. 
 
 
 
 Date Resolution Number 
Approved 24-Apr-13 13-04-259 
Amended 13-Jan-15 15-01-021 
Amended   
 

68



Agenda Item # 11.a) 
 

Author: J Batt Reviewed by:  CAO:  
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: October 27, 2021 

Presented By: Jennifer Batt, Director of Finance 

Title:  Disaster Recovery Program Claim – Severe Storm Flooding - 
Chateh Road 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Following the severe storm event of June 17, 2021, administration submitted Application 
#1 to the Disaster Recovery Program (DRP) for recovery of anticipated costs for the 
Chateh road flooding repairs. As there was approx. 15.4 km under water, administration 
was unable to obtain actual damages, and submitted an estimated application.  
 
The normal process for requesting funding under the DRP grant is a 2 part application.  

- Application 1 identifies an event with anticipated costs. 
- Application 2 is a more detailed breakdown of “Projects”  

 
No second application was submitted, as damaged were less than anticipated. 
 
As any other claim submitted to DRP, there is a review of each claim, and decision on 
approval as per the Disaster Assistance Guideline (DAG), For the Severe Storm 
flooding - Chateh road claim, administration was notified on October 14, 2021 that the 
event did not meet the specific criteria to be approved: 
 

1. The cause of the disaster must be extraordinary and cause widespread 
damage. 

2. The disaster has threatened the economic viability of the community. 
3. The damage is not insurable. 

  
Letter attached for review. 
 
Mackenzie County can choose to appeal, however prior to receiving this letter, 
administration completed the repairs required, and has been reviewing the costs, along 
with the Disaster Recovery Program requirements.  
 

69



Author: J Batt Reviewed by:   CAO:  
 

Administration anticipated presenting their report to Council at this meeting, with a 
recommendation to withdraw the funding assistance request, based on the following: 
 

1. Costs to repair Chateh Road - $34,427.36,  
2. Graveling, and grading costs were already anticipated, and budgeted in the 

2021 Operating Budget for this road 
 
Included in the County’s reporting to DRP case management, regular maintenance 
reports for in this case Chateh road has to be reported, to substantiate a claim for 
regraveling a road outside of the normal operations. As the costs incurred were only 
minimal to what was anticipated, and already included in the Operating Budget, 
administration did not feel it was an extraordinary financial burden on the County. 
 
Since receipt of this letter, administration recommends that a letter be written to the 
Disaster Recovery Program, Managing Director, withdrawing the application for this 
event, as the flooding event did not meet the qualifications under the grant program.  
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
2021 Operating Budget 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
N/A 
 
 
POLICY REFERENCES: 
 
N/A 
 

70



Author: J Batt Reviewed by:   CAO:  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Motion 1 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That a letter be sent to the Disaster Recovery Program Case Manager for the June 17, 
2021 flooding event, stating that the County’s application be withdrawn due to not 
meeting the Disaster Assistance Guidelines criteria, namely costs incurred. 
 
 

71



72



73



74



Agenda Item # 11.b) 
 

Author: J Batt Reviewed by:  CAO:  
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: October 27, 2021 

Presented By: Jennifer Batt, Director of Finance 

Title:  Expense Claims – Councillors 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Councillor Honorarium and Expense Claims are reviewed by Council on a monthly 
basis. 
 
A copy of the following Councillor Honorarium and Expense Claims will be presented at 
the meeting: 

• September– All Councillors  
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
2021 Operating Budget 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
 

75



Author: J Batt Reviewed by:   CAO:  
 

 
COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
N/A 
 
 
POLICY REFERENCES: 
 
Honorariums and Expense Reimbursement Bylaw 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Motion 1 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the Councillor expense claims for September 2021 be received for information. 
 
 

76



Agenda Item # 11.c) 
 

Author: J. Batt Reviewed by:  CAO:  
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: October 27, 2021 

Presented By: Jennifer Batt, Director of Finance 

Title:  Expense Claims – Members at Large 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Members at Large expense claims are reviewed by Council on a monthly basis. 
 
A copy of the following Members at Large Expense Claims will be presented at the 
meeting: 
 
Name Board/Committee Month 

Erick Carter Municipal Planning Commission September 

Tim Driedger Municipal Planning Commission September 

Beth Kappelar Municipal Planning Commission September  

 

77



Author: J. Batt Reviewed by:  CAO:  
 

 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
2021 Operating Budget. 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
N/A 
 
 
POLICY REFERENCES: 
 
Honorariums and Expense Reimbursement Bylaw 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Motion 1 
 
  Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the Member at Large Expense Claims for September 2021 be received for 
information. 
 
 

78



Agenda Item # 14.a) 
 

Author: L Washkevich Reviewed by: C Smith CAO:  
 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: October 27, 2021 

Presented By: Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning & Development 

Title:  Development Statistics Report – January to September 2021 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The following are the total number of issued permits for each year from January 1st to 
December 31st. For 2021, the number of issued permits are from January to September. 
In addition, a comparison of approved development permits is included for the past five 
(5) years from January 1st to September 30th. 
 

Approved Development Permit Applications (Annual) 
     
• 2017 Development Permits 254 permits (construction value 

    $33,545,994.00) 
• 2018 Development Permits 218 permits (construction value 

    $29,711,491.00) 
• 2019 Development Permits 232 permits (construction value 

 $34,538,496.00) 
• 2020 Development Permits           392 permits (construction value 

                                                                                $70,574,441.00)   
• 2021 Development Permits           253 permits (construction value 

                                                                                           $62,197,940.18) 
           (January to September 2021) 
 
      Approved Development Permit Applications (Third (3rd) Quarter)  
   
      (January 1st to September 30th) 
 

• 2017 Development Permits             205 permits 
 

• 2018 Development Permits             190 permits 
 

• 2019 Development Permits             192 permits 

79



Author: L Washkevich Reviewed by: C Smith CAO:  
 

 
• 2020 Development Permits             327 permits 

 
• 2021 Development Permits             253 permits 

 
Issued Building Permits (Annual) 

 
• 2017 Building Permits  157 permits (value $29,051,400.00) 

 
• 2018 Building Permits  153 permits (value $24,706,496.03) 

 
• 2019 Building Permits  160 permits (value $22,648,860.00) 

 
• 2020 Building Permits                    288 permits (value $40,716,510.35) 

 
• 2021 Building Permits                    171 permits (value $53,162,373.51) 

 
(January to September 2021) 

 
*These numbers include all development that required a building permit. 
 
New Subdivision Applications (Annual) 

 
• 2017 subdivisions   24 applications 

 
• 2018 subdivisions   38 applications 

 
• 2019 subdivisions   55 applications 

 
• 2020 subdivisions                         40 applications 

 
• 2021 subdivisions                         57 applications 

 
(January to September 2021) 
 

 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
N/A 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 

80



Author: L Washkevich Reviewed by: C Smith CAO:  
 

 
N/A 
 
 
COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
N/A 
 
 
POLICY REFERENCES:  
 
N/A  
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the development statistics report for January to September 2021 be received for 
information. 

81



82



Total Approved Development Permits by Year 

Type of 
Development 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021* 

Jan-
Sept 

Residential 181 169 180 319 205 

Industrial & 
Commercial 39 40 34 45 27 

Other 35 9 18 28 21 

Total 255 218 232 392 253 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Approved Development Permits by Year

Residential Industrial/Commercial Other

83



Total Approved Development Permits by Year 

Type of 
Development 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021* 

Jan-
Sept 

Residential 181 169 180 319 205 

Industrial & 
Commercial 39 40 34 45 27 

Other 35 9 18 28 21 

Total 255 218 232 392 253 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Approved Development Permits by Year

Residential Industrial/Commercial Other

84



 Approved Development Permits by Ward 
January to September 2021 

Type of 
Development Ward 1 Ward 2 Ward 3 Ward 4 Ward 5 Ward 6 Ward 7 Ward 8 Ward 9 Ward 

10 Total 

Residential 28 30 37 39 33 14 8 6 10 0 205 

Industrial & 
Commercial 1 1 16 4 0 0 3 1 0 1 27 

Other 1 3 5 3 3 2 3 1 0 0 21 

Total 30 34 58 46 36 16 14 8 10 1 253 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Ward 1 Ward 2 Ward 3 Ward 4 Ward 5 Ward 6 Ward 7 Ward 8 Ward 9 Ward 10

Development Permits by Ward
January to September 2021

Residential Industrial/Commercial Other

85



 Subdivision Applications by Ward 
January to September 2021 

Type of 
Subdivision Ward 1 Ward 2 Ward 3 Ward 4 Ward 5 Ward 6 Ward 7 Ward 8 Ward 9 Ward 

10 Total 

Urban 0 0 4 5 0 0 2 0 0 0 11 

Rural 4 4 2 10 11 5 0 2 3 0 41 

Rural Multi Lot 0 1 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 5 

Total 4 5 6 15 15 5 2 2 3 0 57 

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

Ward 1 Ward 2 Ward 3 Ward 4 Ward 5 Ward 6 Ward 7 Ward 8 Ward 9 Ward 10

Subdivisions by Ward
January to September 2021

Urban Rural Rural Multi Lot

86



Total Issued Safety Code Permits by Year 

Type of 
Safety Codes 2017 2018 2019 2020 

2021* 
(Jan-
Sept ) 

Building 157 154 162 288 171 

Electrical 209 168 183 316      203 

Gas 167 120 132 252 136 

Plumbing 119 101 92 183 123 

Total 652 543 569 1039 633 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Safety Code Permits by Year

Building Permits Electrical Permits Gas Permits Plumbing Permits

87



88



Agenda Item # 16.b) 

Author: K. Unrau Reviewed by: CAO: 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: October 27, 2021 

Presented By: Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning & Development 

Title:  Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes  

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 

The minutes of the September 24, 2021 and the October 14, 2021 Municipal Planning 
Commission meetings are attached. 

OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 

N/A 

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

N/A 

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 

N/A 

COMMUNICATION: 

N/A 

89



Author: B. Peters Reviewed by:  CAO:  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the Municipal Planning Commission meeting minutes of September 24, 2021 and 
October 14, 2021 be received for information. 
 

90



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 1 of 10 
Municipal Planning Commission 
Friday, September 24, 2021 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 

 
Mackenzie County Office 

Fort Vermilion, AB 
 

Friday, September 24, 2021 @ 10:00 a.m. 
 
PRESENT: Erick Carter 

Beth Kappelar 
David Driedger  
Jacquie Bateman 
 
Tim Driedger 
 

Chair, MPC Member  
Vice Chair, MPC Member  
Councillor, MPC Member  
Councillor, MPC Member (virtual) (arrived 
in person at 10:27 a.m.) 
MPC Member  

ADMINISTRATION: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MEMBERS OF THE 
PUBLIC: 

Byron Peters 
Lynda Washkevich 
Nicole Friesen  
Madison Dyck 
Ryleigh-Raye Wolfe 
Kristyn Unrau 
 
 
John Neufeld 
James Wieler 
 

Deputy CAO   
Development Officer  
Development Officer  
Development Officer  
Environmental Planner 
Administrative Assistant/Recording 
Secretary 
 
La Crete Coop Petroleum 

 
MOTION  1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
 Erick Carter called the meeting to order at 10:06 a.m. 

 
 2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

 
MPC 21-09-148 MOVED by Beth Kappelar  

 
That the agenda be adopted with the following addition: 6.c) 29-SUB-20   
 
CARRIED 
 

 3. MINUTES  
 
a) Adoption of Minutes  

 
MPC 21-09-149 MOVED by David Driedger   

 
That the minutes of the September 9, 2021 Municipal Planning 

91



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 2 of 10 
Municipal Planning Commission 
Friday, September 24, 2021 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

Commission meeting be adopted as presented.  
 
CARRIED  
 

 4. TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
For Information. 
 

 5. DEVELOPMENT  
 

 a) 252-DP-21 La Crete Coop Ltd.  (Expansion)  
Bulk Fuel Storage & Distribution  
In LC-MS” Plan 902 2145, Block 21 (La Crete)  
 

Jacquie Bateman arrived in person at 10:27 a.m.  
 

MPC 21-09-150 MOVED by David Driedger   
 
That Development Permit 252-DP-21 on Plan 902 2145, Block 21 in the 
name of La Crete Coop Ltd. be TABLED to allow for a public 
engagement in regards to issues of heavy truck traffic on 100 street.  
 
CARRIED  
 
John Neufeld & James Wieler left at 10:43 a.m.  
 

 b) 249-DP-21 Ray Towes/Hydway Hardware  
Accessory Building in “FV-CC” 
Plan 2938RS, Block 3, Lot 16 
(4901 49 Avenue) (Fort Vermilion)  
 

MPC 21-09-151 MOVED by David Driedger  
 
That Development Permit 249-DP-21 on Plan 2938RS, Block 03, Lot 16 
in the name of Ray Toews/Hydway Hardware be APPROVED with the 
following conditions: 
 

 Failure to comply with one or more of the attached conditions shall 
render this permit Null and Void 

 
1. Minimum building setbacks: 

a. 3.1 meters (10 feet) rear yard 
b. 1.5 meters (5 feet) side yard 

 
2. The Accessory Building shall meet all National Building Code 

2019 Alberta Edition requirements for Buildings and any other 

92



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 3 of 10 
Municipal Planning Commission 
Friday, September 24, 2021 

________ 

________ 

requirements specified by Superior Safety Codes. Failure to do so 
shall render this permit Null and Void. 

3. The architecture, construction materials and appearance of
buildings and other structures shall be to accepted standards.

4. The Accessory Building shall not be used as a dwelling.

5. PRIOR to installation of a new access or changing location of
existing access, complete a Request for Access form by
contacting the Operational Services Department for Mackenzie
County at 780-928-3983. Access to be constructed to Mackenzie
County standards and at the developers’ expense.

6. No construction or development is allowed on or in a right-of-way.
It is the responsibility of the developer/owner/occupant to
investigate the utility rights-of-way, if any, that exist on the
property prior to commencement of any construction and to
ensure that no construction or development is completed on any
utility right-of-way.

7. The total site area (lot) shall have a positive surface drainage
without adversely affecting the neighbouring properties.

8. The Developer shall at all times comply with all applicable
Federal, Provincial and Municipal legislation and regulations
and County Bylaws and resolutions relating to the
development of the lands.

CARRIED 

c) 253-DP-21 Fort Vermilion School Division
Portable Unit (Classroom) in “I”
Plan 782 0147, Block 12 (10202 94 Avenue) (La Crete)

MPC 21-09-152 MOVED by Beth Kappelar 

That Development Permit 253-DP-21 on Plan 782 0147, Block 12, in the 
name of Fort Vermilion School Division be APPROVED with the 
following conditions: 

Failure to comply with one or more of the attached conditions shall 
render this permit Null and Void 

1. Minimum building setbacks:
a. 7.6 meters (25 feet) front yard;
b. 1.5 meters (5.0 feet) side yards;
c. 3.0 meters (10 feet) rear yard; from any other property

93



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 4 of 10 
Municipal Planning Commission 
Friday, September 24, 2021 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

lines.  
 

2. The architecture, construction materials and appearance of 
buildings and other structures shall be to accepted standards. 

 
3. The undercarriage of the Portable Unit (Classroom) shall be 

screened from view by skirting or such other means satisfactory 
to the Development Authority.  

 
4. No accessory building erected/or moved onto the site shall be 

used as a dwelling. 
 

5. All sewage disposals shall conform to the Alberta Private 
Sewage Systems Standard of Practice 2015.  

 
6. PRIOR to installation of a new access or changing location of 

existing access, complete a Request for Access form by 
contacting the Operations Department for Mackenzie County at 
928-3983.  Access to be constructed to Mackenzie County 
standards at the developer’s expense. 

 
7. No construction or development is allowed on or in a right-of-way. 

It is the responsibility of the developer/owner/occupant to 
investigate the utility rights-of-way, if any, that exist on the 
property prior to commencement of any construction and to 
ensure that no construction or development is completed on any 
utility right-of-way.   

 
8. The total site area (lot) shall have a positive surface drainage 

without adversely affecting the neighbouring properties. 
 

9. The Developer shall at all times comply with all applicable 
Federal, Provincial and Municipal legislation and regulations and 
County Bylaws and resolutions relating to the development of the 
lands. 

 
CARRIED 
 

 d) 254-DP-21 Jeff Plett  
Home Based Business Minor in “H-R1” 
Plan 752 1580, Block 8, Lot 8 (10206 99 Avenue) 
(La Crete) 

 
MPC 21-09-153 MOVED by David Driedger 

  
That Development Permit 254-DP-21 on Plan 752 1580, Block 8, Lot 8 in 

94



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 5 of 10 
Municipal Planning Commission 
Friday, September 24, 2021 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

the name of Jeff Plett be APPROVED with the following conditions: 
 

Failure to comply with one or more of the attached conditions shall 
render this permit Null and Void 

 
1. This development permit may be revoked at any time, if, in 

the opinion of the Development Authority, the Home Based 
Business Minor has become detrimental or otherwise 
incompatible with the amenities of the neighborhood. 

 
2. This development permit will expire upon the expiration, 

cancellation or revocation of your business license. This 
development permit shall become null and void if a County 
business license is not maintained in good standing. 
 

3. There shall be a limit of 1 cord of firewood stored in the front 
yard.    

 
4. At all times, the privacy of the adjacent dwellings shall be 

preserved and the Home Based Business shall not unduly 
offend the surrounding residents by way of excessive 
lighting, noise, traffic, congestion, late visitations by clients. 

 
5. The Home Based Business shall not involve client and customer 

visits outside of the hours of 8:00 a.m. – 6:00 p.m. 
 

6. The Municipality has assigned the following address to the noted 
property (10206 – 99th Avenue). You are required to display the 
address (10206) to be clearly legible from the street and be on a 
contrasting background. The minimum size of the characters shall 
be four inches in height. 
 

7. No construction or development is allowed on a right-of-way. It is 
the responsibility of the developer/owner/occupant to investigate 
the utility rights-of-way, if any, that exist on the property prior to 
commencement of any construction and to ensure that no 
construction or development is completed on any utility right-of-
way. 

 
8. Home Based Businesses are limited to one sign not exceeding 

1.1 square meters (12 square feet) in area. 
 

9. The sign shall not be placed within the Road Right of Way.  
 

10. The site and sign shall be kept in a safe, clean, and tidy condition, 
or may be required to be renovated or removed. 

 
11. The sign shall: 

 
a. Not obstruct the orderly and safe flow of vehicular and 

pedestrian traffic, 

95



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 6 of 10 
Municipal Planning Commission 
Friday, September 24, 2021 

________ 

________ 

b. Not unduly interfere with the amenities of the district,
c. Not materially interfere with or affect the use, enjoyment or

value of neighbouring properties, and
d. Not create visual or aesthetic blight.

12. Illumination of any signs must not negatively affect, nor pose a
safety hazard to, an adjacent site or street.

13. Wiring and conduits of any signs must be concealed from view.

14. The total site area (lot) shall have a positive surface drainage
without adversely affecting the neighbouring properties.

15. The Developer shall at all times comply with all applicable Federal,
Provincial and Municipal legislation and regulations and County
Bylaws and resolutions relating to the development of the lands.

CARRIED 

e) 260-DP-21 La Crete Sawmills
Industrial Use, Heavy (Biomass Fuel Burner)
Plan 892 2718, Lot 2 (La Crete Rural)

MPC 21-09-154 MOVED by Tim Driedger 

That Development Permit 260-DP-21 on Plan 892 2718, Lot 2 in the 
name of La Crete Sawmills be APPROVED with the following conditions: 

Failure to comply with one or more of the attached conditions shall 
render this permit Null and Void 

1. The proposed use must be a minimum of 210 feet from the center
of Highway 697.

2. Remaining minimum building setbacks: 41.15 meters (135 feet)
from any road allowances and 15.24 meters (50 feet) from any
other property lines.

3. AN APPROVED ROADSIDE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT IS
REQUIRED FROM ALBERTA TRANSPORTATION. ALL
CONDITIONS AND REQUIREMENTS BY ALBERTA
TRANSPORTATION SHALL BE MET TO THEIR
SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS PRIOR TO
COMMENCEMENT OF DEVELOPMENT. (CONTACT ALBERTA
TRANSPORTATION AT 1-780-624-6280). FAILURE TO DO SO
WILL RENDER THIS PERMIT NULL AND VOID.

96



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 7 of 10 
Municipal Planning Commission 
Friday, September 24, 2021 

________ 

________ 

4. All conditions and requirements from other Government
agencies are to be met to their specifications and standards,
including any conditions and requirements of the Alberta
Utilities Commission “AUC” and the Alberta Energy
Regulator “AER”.

5. This permit approval is subject to approval from Alberta
Transportation and other applicable Government agencies.
The developer is required to obtain written approval from
Alberta Transportation and any other applicable Government
agencies regarding the proposed development prior to the
commencement of the development.

6. The Industrial Use, Heavy shall meet all National Building Code
2019 Alberta Edition requirements for Buildings and any other
requirements specified by Superior Safety Codes. Failure to do so
shall render this permit Null and Void.

7. The architecture, construction materials and appearance of
buildings and other structures shall be to accepted standards.

8. This permit approval is subject to the access to the property
being constructed to County standards. PRIOR to installation
of a new access or changing location of existing access,
complete a Request for Access form by contacting the
Operational Services Department for Mackenzie County at
780-928-3983. Access to be constructed at the developers’
expense.

9. No construction or development is allowed on or in a right-of-way.
It is the responsibility of the developer/owner/occupant to
investigate the utility rights-of-way, if any, that exist on the
property prior to commencement of any construction and to
ensure that no construction or development is completed on any
utility right-of-way.

10. The total site area (lot) shall have a positive surface drainage
without adversely affecting the neighbouring properties.

11. The Developer shall at all times comply with all applicable Federal,
Provincial and Municipal legislation and regulations and County
Bylaws and resolutions relating to the development of the lands.

CARRIED 

6. SUBDIVISIONS

a) 37-SUB-21 Simon Driedger REVISION
2.07 acre Subdivision (1 lot)
Plan 192 3085, Block 27, Lot 10 (La Crete, in Hamlet)

97



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 8 of 10 
Municipal Planning Commission 
Friday, September 24, 2021 

________ 

________ 

MPC 21-09-155 MOVED by Beth Kappelar 

That Subdivision Application 37-SUB-20 in the name of Simon & 
Katharina Driedger on Plan 192 3085, Block 27, Lot 10 be TABLED until 
the revised Tentative Plan is received from the surveyor. 

CARRIED 

b) 58-SUB-21 Grant Smith
11.02 acre Subdivision (1 lot)
NW 1-109-12-W5M (Fort Vermilion Road)

MPC 21-09-156 MOVED by Beth Kappelar 

That Subdivision Application 58-SUB-21 in the name of Grant Smith on 
NW 1-109-12-W5M be APPROVED with the following conditions: 

1. This approval is for one (1) TYPE B subdivision, 11.2 acres (4.53
hectares) in size.

2. Applicant/developer shall enter into and abide by a Development
Agreement with Mackenzie County which shall contain, but is not
limited to:

a) Prior to any development on the proposed subdivision,
the developer shall obtain a development permit from the
Municipality;

I. Any permanent buildings on the property
must be constructed 2% above the grade of
the road.

b) Mitigation measure must be in place in order to avoid
water damage from potential pluvial flooding;

c) Provision of a road and access to both the subdivision
and the balance of the lands in accordance with
Mackenzie County standards at the developer’s expense;

d) All sewage disposals shall conform to the Alberta Private
Sewage Systems Standard of Practice 2015;

e) Provision of a storm water management plan. Contact
Planning and Development staff at (780)928-3983 to
discuss the requirements for your subdivision;

98



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 9 of 10 
Municipal Planning Commission 
Friday, September 24, 2021 

________ 

________ 

f) Any outstanding property taxes are to be paid on the land
proposed to be subdivided prior to registration;

g) Provision of utility rights-of-way as required by ATCO
Electric, TELUS, Northern Lights Gas Co-op, and others;

h) Provision of and negotiations for utility rights-of-way
and/or easements as required by utility companies. The
Developer shall be responsible for any line relocation or
correction costs that occur as a result of this
development. Responses from utility companies are
shown in Schedule “C” hereto attached;

i) Mackenzie County shall not be held liable for any
concerns, issues or damages related to and/or
resulting from the water tables and any other water
problems as a result of any low land levels of the
proposed development. It is the responsibility of the
developer to ensure that adequate drainage and other
precautions are taken to avoid water seepage into the
dwellings/basement and/or flooding of the basement,
and/or any ancillary buildings.

CARRIED 

c) 29-SUB-20 Elizabeth Wieler & Helen Wiebe (Addition)
10.00 acre Subdivision (2 lots) TIME EXTENSION
NW 19-107-14-W5M (Blumenort)

MPC 21-09-157 MOVED by Beth Kappelar 

That a one year time extension be granted for 29-SUB-20 in the name of 
Elizabeth Wieler & Helen Wiebe.  

CARRIED 

7. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

a) None

8. IN CAMERA

a) None

9. MEETING DATES

99



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 10 of 10 
Municipal Planning Commission 
Friday, September 24, 2021 

________ 

________ 

 Thursday, October 14th, 2021 @ 10:00 a.m. in La Crete

10. ADJOURNMENT

MPC 21-09-158 MOVED by Beth Kappelar 

That the Municipal Planning Commission Meeting be adjourned at 11:00 
a.m.

CARRIED 

These minutes were adopted this 14th day of October, 2021. 

Erick Carter, Chair, MPC Member 

100



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 1 of 6 
Municipal Planning Commission 
Thursday, October 14, 2021 

________ 

________ 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 

Mackenzie County Office 
La Crete, AB 

Thursday, October 14, 2021 @ 10:00 a.m. 

PRESENT: Erick Carter 
Beth Kappelar 
David Driedger  
Jacquie Bateman 
Tim Driedger 

Chair, MPC Member  
Vice Chair, MPC Member  
Councillor, MPC Member  
Councillor, MPC Member (virtual) 
MPC Member  

ADMINISTRATION: 

MEMBERS OF THE 
PUBLIC: 

Caitlin Smith 
Nicole Friesen 
Kristyn Unrau 

Barry Neufeld 
John Neufeld 

Manager of Planning and Development 
Development Officer  
Administrative Assistant/Recording 
Secretary 

La Crete Coop Petroleum 

MOTION 1. CALL TO ORDER

Erick Carter called the meeting to order at 10:09 a.m. 

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

MPC 21-10-159 MOVED by Beth Kappelar 

That the agenda be adopted as presented. 

CARRIED 

3. MINUTES

a) Adoption of Minutes

MPC 21-10-160 MOVED by David Driedger  

 That the minutes of the September 24, 2021 Municipal Planning 
Commission meeting be adopted as presented.  

CARRIED 

101



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 2 of 6 
Municipal Planning Commission 
Thursday, October 14, 2021 

________ 

________ 

b) Business Arising from Pervious Minutes

i) 100 Street Meeting Outcomes

4. TERMS OF REFERENCE

For Information.

5. DEVELOPMENT

a) 252-DP-21 La Crete Coop Ltd.
Bulk Fuel Storage & Distribution (Bulk Fuel Sales)
In LC-MS” Plan 902 2145; 21 (La Crete)

MPC 21-10-161 MOVED by Beth Kappelar 

That Development Permit 252-DP-21 on Plan 902 2145, Block 21 in the 
name of La Crete Coop Ltd. be APPROVED with the following 
conditions: 

Failure to comply with one or more of the attached conditions shall 
render this permit   Null and Void. 

1. All conditions and regulation set out by the Safety Codes
Council of Alberta are to be met to their specifications and
standards. Copy of the approval from Safety Codes Council of
Alberta must be submitted to Mackenzie County prior to
operation. Failure to do so will render this permit Null and Void.

2. The developer must enter into a development agreement with
Mackenzie County.

3. An Environmental Containment Plan shall be completed and a
copy submitted to Mackenzie County prior to any construction.
Failure to do so will render this permit Null and Void.

4. The landowner/developer shall provide a remediation certificate
from the province of Alberta to Mackenzie County within three
(3) years of vacating the site.

5. Minimum building and Bulk Fuel station setbacks;

a. 9.1 meters (30 feet) from the front yard facing 100th Street, and
b. 3.1 meters (10 feet), from the rear (East) yard.

102



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 3 of 6 
Municipal Planning Commission 
Thursday, October 14, 2021 

________ 

________ 

6. This permit approval is subject to the access to the property
being constructed to County standards. PRIOR to installation of a
new access or changing location of existing access, complete a
Request for Access form by contacting the Operational Services
Department for Mackenzie County at 780-928-3983. Access to be
constructed to Mackenzie County standards and paved at the
developers’ expense.

7. The developer must enter into a road use and/or road upgrade
agreement with Mackenzie County, and all reasonable efforts
shall be taken to ensure that all transporting/hauling traffic will
access the site via the designated Mackenzie County truck
route.

8. The architecture, construction materials and appearance of buildings
and other structures shall be to accepted standards.

9. The exterior yards shall be landscaped to the satisfaction of the
Development Authority. Landscaped strips are required between
the fuel pumps or tanks and the right of way (100 Street & 101
Street). The landscaped strips shall be a minimum of 3.1 m in
width and consist of a combination of grass, shrubs and trees.

10. The property must at all times be kept in a neat and orderly fashion.

11. Provide adequate clear signage locating exits, entrance and parking,
as required by the Development Authority.

12. The municipality has assigned the following address to the noted
property 10502-100th Street. You are required to display the address
(10502) to be clearly legible from the street and be on a contrasting
background. The minimum size of the characters shall be four inches
in height.

13. This permit may be revoked at any time if, in the opinion of the
Development Officer, the proposed development has become
detrimental, unsightly or otherwise incompatible with the amenities of
the neighbourhood.

14. The developer shall provide the municipality with a site drainage and
surface water management plan that outlines the following:

a. Erosion prevention systems, as required
b. Direction of site drainage
c. Petroleum spill containment and or separation system

15. All sewage disposal systems to be in conformance with the Alberta
Private Sewage Systems Standard of Practice 2015.

103



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 4 of 6 
Municipal Planning Commission 
Thursday, October 14, 2021 

________ 

________ 

16. No construction or development is allowed on or in a right-of-way. It is
the responsibility of the developer/owner/occupant to investigate the
utility rights-of-way, if any, that exist on the property prior to
commencement of any construction and to ensure that no
construction or development is completed on any utility right-of-way.

17. The sign shall be located a minimum of:

a. 20 meters from regulatory signs, and
b. Not less than 7 meters and not more than 10 meters from the

curb/sidewalk.

18. The sign shall be a minimum of 2 meters in height from the bottom of
the sign above the curb/sidewalk.

19. The sight and sign shall be kept in a safe, clean, and tidy condition, or
may be required to be renovated or removed.

20. The sign shall:
a. Not obstruct the orderly and safe flow of vehicular and

pedestrian traffic,
b. Not unduly interfere with the amenities of the district,
c. Not materially interfere with or affect the use, enjoyment or

value of neighbouring properties, and
d. Not create visual or aesthetic blight.

21. The total site area shall have a positive surface drainage without
adversely affecting the neighbouring properties.

22. The Developer shall at all times comply with all applicable
Federal, Provincial and Municipal legislation and regulations and
County Bylaws and resolutions relating to the development of the
lands.

CARRIED  

Barry Neufeld and John Neufeld left at 10:15 a.m. 

b) 269-DP-21 Foothills Carpentry Ltd.
Two (2) Tarp Shelters in “LC-HI”
Plan 142 3831; 4; 4 (9207-106 Ave) (La Crete)

MPC 21-10-162 MOVED by Tim Driedger 

That Development Permit 269-DP-21 on Plan 142 3831, Block 04, Lot 04 
in the name of Foothills Carpentry Ltd. be APPROVED with the following 
conditions: 

104



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 5 of 6 
Municipal Planning Commission 
Thursday, October 14, 2021 

________ 

________ 

Failure to comply with one or more of the attached conditions shall 
render this permit Null and Void 

1. This permit expires October 20, 2023, should the Tarp
Shelters need to remain on location, please contact
Mackenzie County Planning and Development Department at
(780) 928-3983 for a time extension.

2. Minimum building setbacks;
a) 9.1 meters (30 feet) facing 106th Avenue;
b) 9.1 meters (30 feet) exterior side (East) yard;
c) 3.1 meters (10 feet) interior side (West) yard; and
d) 3.1 meters (10 feet) rear (South) yard; from the property lines.

3. The Tarp Shelters shall meet all National Building Code 2019
Alberta Edition requirements for Buildings and any other
requirements specified by Superior Safety Codes. Failure to do
so shall render this permit Null and Void.

4. The architecture, construction materials and appearance of buildings
and other structures shall be to accepted standards.

5. This permit may be revoked at any time if, in the opinion of the
Development Officer, the proposed development has become
detrimental, unsightly or otherwise incompatible with the amenities of
the neighbourhood.

6. This permit approval is subject to the access to the property being
constructed to County standards. PRIOR to installation of a new
access or changing location of existing access, complete a Request
for Access form by contacting the Operational Services Department
for Mackenzie County at 780-928-3983. Access to be constructed to
Mackenzie County standards and at the developers’ expense.

7. No construction or development is allowed on or in a right-of-way. It is
the responsibility of the developer/owner/occupant to investigate the
utility rights-of-way, if any, that exist on the property prior to
commencement of any construction and to ensure that no
construction or development is completed on any utility right-of-way.

8. The total site area shall have a positive surface drainage without
adversely affecting the neighbouring properties.

9. The Developer shall at all times comply with all applicable Federal,
Provincial and Municipal legislation and regulations and County Bylaws
and resolutions relating to the development of the lands.

CARRIED 

105



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 6 of 6 
Municipal Planning Commission 
Thursday, October 14, 2021 

________ 

________ 

6. SUBDIVISIONS

a) None

7. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

a) None

8. IN CAMERA

a) None

9. MEETING DATES

a) None

10. ADJOURNMENT

MPC 21-10-163 MOVED by David Driedger 

That the Municipal Planning Commission Meeting be adjourned at 10:19 
a.m.

CARRIED 

These minutes were adopted this 14th day of October, 2021. 

Erick Carter, Chair, MPC Member 

106



Agenda Item # 16.c) 

Author: L Washkevich Reviewed by: C Smith CAO: 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: October 27, 2021 

Presented By: Caitlin Smith, Manager of Planning & Development 

Title:  Inter-Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 

The minutes of September 28, 2021 Inter-Municipal Planning Commission meeting are 
attached. 

OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 

N/A 

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

N/A 

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 

N/A 

COMMUNICATION: 

N/A 

107



Author: L Washkevich Reviewed by: C Smith CAO:  
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous 
 
That the Inter-Municipal Planning Commission meeting minutes of September 28, 2021 
be received for information. 
 

108



Inter – Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 
Tuesday, September 28, 2021 

INTER – MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

Tuesday, September 28, 2021 
7:00 p.m. 
via Zoom 

PRESENT: Mike Morgan 
William Driedger 

Brent Anderson 
Jacquie Bateman 

Chair, Councillor – Town of High Level 
Vice Chair, Member at Large – Mackenzie 
County 
Councillor – Town of High Level 
Councillor – Mackenzie County 

ADMINISTRATION: 
(Mackenzie County) 

(Town of High Level) 

Caitlin Smith 
Lynda Washkevich 

Hayley Gavin 
Zachary Mezzatesta 

Manager of Planning & Development 
Development Officer/Recording Secretary 

Land Use & Planning Manager 
Land Use & Planning Officer 

ABSENT: David Driedger Councillor – Mackenzie County 

MOTION 1. CALL TO ORDER

Mike Morgan called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

IMPC 21-09-005 MOVED by William Driedger 

That the agenda be amended as follows: The agenda date of 
Thursday, September 28, 2021 to be changed to Tuesday, 
September 28, 2021.   

CARRIED 

3. MINUTES

a) Inter-Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes

IMPC 21-09-006 MOVED by Jacquie Bateman 

That the minutes of the July 7, 2021 Inter-Municipal Planning 
Commission meeting be adopted as presented. 

CARRIED 

4. REVIEW OF IMPC AGREEMENT

a) Terms of Reference

109



Inter – Municipal Planning Commission Meeting  
Tuesday, September 28, 2021 

 
 

Administration concluded that there will be an amendment to the 
existing IMPC Agreement to include a clause regarding the ability for 
either Municipality to waive quorum for IMPC business.    
 

 5. DELEGATIONS  
 

 None. 
 

 6. BUSINESS 
 

 a) Development Permit Application 
251-DP-21 HLDQ Restaurant – Sign  
in “A” (Rural High Level) 

 
IMPC 21-09-007 MOVED by Jacquie Bateman 

 
That Development Permit 251-DP-21 on SW 9-110-19-W5M in the 
name of HLDQ Restaurant be APPROVED with the following 
conditions: 
 

Failure to comply with one or more of the attached conditions shall 
render this permit Null and Void 

 
1. This permit may be revoked at any time if, in the opinion 

of the Development Authority, the proposed development 
has become detrimental or otherwise incompatible with 
the amenities of the neighbourhood. 
 

2. AN APPROVED ROADSIDE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT IS 
REQUIRED FROM ALBERTA TRANSPORTATION. ALL 
CONDITIONS AND REQUIREMENTS BY ALBERTA 
TRANSPORTATION SHALL BE MET TO THEIR 
SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS PRIOR TO 
COMMENCEMENT OF DEVELOPMENT. (CONTACT 
ALBERTA TRANSPORTATION AT 1-780-624-6280). 
FAILURE TO DO SO WILL RENDER THIS PERMIT NULL 
AND VOID. 
 

3. The sign shall be placed on site and is not permitted to be 
placed on any County lands and/or road rights-of-way. 
 

4. The sign shall: 
 

a. Be located a minimum of 200 meters from regulatory signs,   
and 

b. 3 meters (9 feet) from the outer edge of the road or not less 
than 1.5 meters from the property line if on private 
property. 

 
5. The sign shall be a minimum of 2 meters in height from the 

110



Inter – Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 
Tuesday, September 28, 2021 

bottom of the sign above the road. 

6. The site and sign shall be kept in a safe, clean, and tidy
condition, or may be required to be renovated or removed.

7. The sign shall:

a. Not obstruct the orderly and safe flow of vehicular and
pedestrian
traffic,

b. Not unduly interfere with the amenities of the district,
c. Not materially interfere with or affect the use,

enjoyment or value of neighbouring properties, and
d. Not create visual or aesthetic blight.

8. Wiring and conduits of the sign must be concealed from view.

9. Illumination of the sign must not negatively affect, nor pose a
safety hazard to, an adjacent site or street. The brightness of
illumination is at the discretion of the Development Authority.

10. PRIOR to installation of a new access or changing location of
existing access, complete a Request for Access form by
contacting the Operational Services Department for Mackenzie
County at 780-928-3983. Access to be constructed to
Mackenzie County standards and at the developers’ expense.

11. The architecture, construction materials and appearance of
buildings and other structures shall be to accepted standards.

12. No construction or development is allowed on or in a right-of-
way. It is the responsibility of the developer/owner/occupant to
investigate the utility rights-of-way, if any, that exist on the
property prior to commencement of any construction and to
ensure that no construction or development is completed on
any utility right-of-way.

13. The total site area (lot) shall have a positive surface drainage
without adversely affecting the neighbouring properties.

14. The Developer shall at all times comply with all applicable
Federal, Provincial and Municipal legislation and
regulations and County Bylaws and resolutions relating to
the development of the lands.

CARRIED 

6. MEETING DATE DATES

To be decided. 

7. ADJOURNMENT

IMPC 21-09-008 MOVED by Brent Anderson 

111



Inter – Municipal Planning Commission Meeting  
Tuesday, September 28, 2021 

 
 

 
That the Inter – Municipal Planning Commission Meeting be 
adjourned at 7:05 p.m. 

 
CARRIED 
 

These minutes were adopted this _______________________.  
 
 
______________________     
Chair       

112



Agenda Item # 17.a) 

Author: C. Sarapuk Reviewed by: C. Sarapuk CAO: 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: October 27, 2021 

Presented By: Len Racher, Chief Administrative Officer 

Title:  Information/Correspondence 

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 

The following items are attached for your information, review, and action if required. 

• Council Action List
• 2021-09-15 Alberta Transportation
• 2021-09-10 Town of Sundre – Code of Conduct
• 2021-10-13 Alberta Community & Social Services
• 2021-09-10 Town of Sundre – RCMP Retroactive Pay
• 2021-10-04 County of Vermilion River
• CN’s 2021-2022 Grain Plan
• Alberta’s Crown Land Outdoor Recreation Economy
• 2021-06-23 REDI Meeting Minutes
• 202-09-07 MCLB Meeting Minutes
• FCSS Update

OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN: 

COMMUNICATION / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

113



Author: C. Sarapuk Reviewed by: CAO: 

POLICY REFERENCES: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 Simple Majority  Requires 2/3  Requires Unanimous

That the information/correspondence items be accepted for information purposes. 

114



Council and Committee of the Whole Meeting Action List Page 1 of 9 
2021-10-12 

Mackenzie County 
Action List as of October 12, 2021 

 
Council and Committee of the Whole Meeting Motions Requiring Action 

 
Motion Action Required Action By Status 

 
February 22, 2016 Council Meeting 
16-02-135 That the County covers the additional cost of the survey 

on Plan 5999CL, Lot E to date and have administration 
release a copy of the report to the landowner informing 
them that the initial investigation survey has been 
completed. 
 

Byron Refer to  
Motion 18-06-411 

 
In progress. Meeting with 

landowners. 
 

Impacted by 2020 flood. 
 

May 10, 2016 Regular Council Meeting 
16-05-354 That administration be authorized to proceed as follows 

in regards to the Zama Crown Land Procurement: 
• cancel PLS 080023; 
• pursue acquisition of land parcels as 

identified on the map presented in red; 
• identify a parcel of land to be subdivided from 

Title Number 102 145 574 +1 (Short Legal 
0923884; 21; 1) and offered for trade or sale to 
Alberta Environment and Parks due to its 
unsuitability for a hamlet development , 
specifically the land use restrictions per Alberta 
Energy Regulator. 

 

Don PLS Cancelled. 
 

Asset list with all leases, 
caveats, dispositions, 

easements, etc. 
 

Response Received from 
AEP 2017-11-27. 

 
Application submitted. 

 
RFD to Council once 

response is received to 
our application. 

 
July 12, 2016 Regular Council Meeting 
16-07-526 That the County pursue purchasing the leased lands at 

the Hutch Lake campground. 
 

Don 
Len 

Application for purchase 
of Hutch Lake has been 

filed. 
 

April 25, 2018 Council Meeting 
18-04-314 That administration be authorized to proceed with a 

Department License of Occupation (DLO) for existing 
and future walking trail expansion on SE 14-106-15-
W5 once the title transfer has been completed for SE 
15-106-15-W5. 
 

Don Application submitted. 
FNC process 

18-04-315 That administration move forward in purchasing more 
land north of the existing Hutch Lake Cabins and that 
final costs be brought back to Council for decision. 
 

Don Sketch plan completed.  
Application to purchase 

is in submitted 

June 12, 2018 Council Meeting 
18-06-432 That the County apply to Alberta Environment & Parks 

for a bank stabilization and clean-up along the Peace 
River in the Hamlet of Fort Vermilion as a result of the 
ice jam flooding event. 
 

Byron 
 

In progress. Engineering 
report received. (WSP) 
Working on application. 

 
2020 Flood Mitigation 

115



Motion Action Required Action By Status 
 

Council and Committee of the Whole Meeting Action List Page 2 of 9 
2021-10-12  

 
October 9, 2018 Regular Council Meeting 
18-10-763 That administration proceeds with the water diversion 

license’s as discussed. 
 

John Received some follow-up 
from Ministers Office.  
Continue to follow-up. 

 
November 13, 2018 Regular Council Meeting 
18-11-885 That the Zama Water Treatment Improvements Project 

be retendered with a project scope change. 
 

John In progress 
2021-03-09 Council  

November 5, 2019 Regular Council Meeting 
19-11-676 
 

That Mackenzie County representatives appointed to a 
provincial task force must provide regular written 
reports to council, shall immediately forward all task 
force material and information to council and CAO, and 
shall receive specific, prior approval from council to 
represent views or negotiate on behalf of the County. 
 

Council Discussed at COW 

January 29, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
20-01-055 That Administration move forward with applying for 

Recreational Leases for the Bistcho Lake cabin areas 
and consideration be given to the work being done by 
the Caribou Sub-regional Task Force. 
 

Don On hold.  Pursuing 
reinstatement of 

commercial fishing. 
 

20-01-067 That a letter be sent to the Minister of Municipal Affairs 
in regards to the Section 627(3) of the Municipal 
Government Act that relates to the number of 
councillor’s on a Subdivision and Development Appeal 
Board. 
 

Byron In progress 
CC:RMA & AUMA 

June 5, 2020 Special Council Meeting 
20-06-334 That administration continues to support a community 

recovery plan that includes a community engagement 
component. 
 

DRT Ongoing 

June 15, 2020 Special Council Meeting 
20-06-373 That the Fort Vermilion future development continue to 

be investigated. 
 

DRT Ongoing 

June 24, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
20-06-383 That applications be submitted for the three boat launch 

locations and that the Mackenzie County Search and 
Rescue River Access Plan be amended to include the 
additional access sites as identified in the 1991 
Recreation Sites in the Lower Peace River Valley 
Report and be brought back to Council for approval. 
 

Don Application submitted for 
three boat launches. 

 
River Access Plan in 

progress. 

20-06-396 That second reading of Bylaw 1181-20 being a Land 
Use Bylaw Amendment to rezone Plan 2938RS, Block 
02, Lots 15 & 16 from Fort Vermilion Commercial 
Centre “FV-CC” to Hamlet Residential 1 “H-R1” to 
accommodate a Manufactured Home-Mobile be 
TABLED. 
 

Caitlin Tabled due to flood 
recovery process. 

 

July 15, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 

116



Motion Action Required Action By Status 
 

Council and Committee of the Whole Meeting Action List Page 3 of 9 
2021-10-12  

20-11-744 That the concepts and guidance provided within the La 
Crete Industrial Growth Strategy be incorporated into 
County planning documents. 
 

Byron Incorporated into the 
MDP 

2022 Budget 

November 25, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
20-11-748 That Administration proceed in developing an offsite 

levy bylaw for the benefitting area of the La Crete South 
Sanitary Trunk Sewer for the purpose in recovering all 
costs associated with the sanitary sewer trunk 
improvements. 
 

Byron Working on draft offsite 
levy bylaw. 
No Change 

20-11-759 That administration proceed with developing 
consolidated offsite levy bylaws on a per improvement 
basis. 
 

Byron Tabled at 2021-09-14 
Council Meeting 

20-11-774 That a letter be sent to Alberta Health Services 
regarding critical staff shortages in Northwest Alberta. 
 

Len In progress  

December 16, 2020 Budget Council Meeting 
20-12-799 That the County lobby the provincial government (Red 

Tape Reduction) to consolidate grazing leases into a 
single tax roll to assist the province and the municipality 
to reduce red tape. 
 

Len In progress  

20-12-805 That administration request that the province 
waive/reimburse fees associated with the River Search 
& Rescue Access Plan approvals. 
 

Don Drafting a letter to AEP 

20-12-808 Administration bring forward a policy review at each 
Committee of the Whole Meeting. 
 

Len Ongoing 

January 12, 2021 Regular Council Meeting 
21-01-033 That administration request meetings with the following 

Ministries during the 2021 Rural Municipalities of 
Alberta (RMA) Spring Convention to discuss the 
following policy items or issues: 
 

Ministry: Priority Topics: 
Municipal Affairs Disaster Recovery 

Petition to Form a New Municipality 
 

Transportation Bridge at Tompkins Landing 
High Wide Load Corridor 
 

Agriculture & Forestry Farmland Expansion 
Fire Ban Exemption Request 
Agricultural Land Sales 
Natural Gas Line Update 
 

Health La Crete Birthing Centre 
 

Environment & Parks Agricultural Land Sales 
Recreation Leases – First Nation 
Consultation 
Water Diversion Licenses 
Northwest Bison 
 

Energy Transportation Corridor 
 

Collen 
Len 

In progress 

117



Motion Action Required Action By Status 
 

Council and Committee of the Whole Meeting Action List Page 4 of 9 
2021-10-12  

Solicitor General Fort Vermilion Courthouse 
 

 
 

January 26, 2021 Committee of the Whole Meeting 
COW-21-
01-007 

That administration work with the landowner for 
farmland access options and bring a recommendation 
to Council. 
 

Byron  

January 27, 2021 Regular Council Meeting 
21-01-052 That administration investigate all costs associated with 

the ownership of the Fire Truck unit #9132, purchased 
under Section 10.11 of the Regional Service Sharing 
Agreement and that the transfer of ownership be 
TABLED. 
 

Jennifer Included in RSSA 

21-01-075 That administration proceed with the land sale of Plan 
082 6817, Block 3, Lots 11MR & 12MR for the purpose 
of consolidation. 
 

Caitlin Designation removed, 
waiting on land transfer 

February 9, 2021 Regular Council Meeting 
21-02-111 That administration work with the Fort Vermilion School 

Division to complete a trade and land transfer for 
properties adjacent to the Blue Hills Community School, 
La Crete Public School and Fort Vermilion Public 
School. 
 

Byron In progress 

21-02-115 That administration prepare a new Land Use Bylaw 
Amendment to further restrict non-compatible uses 
near Mackenzie County airports 
 

Caitlin In Progress  

February 24, Regular Council Meeting 
21-02-146 That the Agricultural Land Development & Lease 

Proposals for NW 6 & SW 7-109-19-W5 be TABLED 
until further discussion with bidder. 
 

Grant Drafting 

March 9,2021 Regular Council Meeting 
21-03-185 That administration include Option 4 - being place a 

new building on higher ground (new location) in the 
flood recovery work for the Fort Vermilion Airport, and 
that a detailed budget amendment to fund the works be 
presented to council prior to issuing a tender for the 
recovery/mitigation works. 
 

Byron Working with engineers  

March 24, 2021 Regular Council Meeting  
21-03-212 That the Caretaking – Fort Vermilion Waste Transfer 

Station Tenders be retendered. 
 

Don  

21-03-213 That the hours are changed to 5:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. 
on Tuesdays and Thursdays at the Fort Vermilion 
Transfer Station. 
 

Don  

21-03-240 That the 2021 Capital budget be amended to include 
$1,100,000 for the La Crete North Storm – Pond A, with 

John 
Jen 

Completes 

118



Motion Action Required Action By Status 
 

Council and Committee of the Whole Meeting Action List Page 5 of 9 
2021-10-12  

funding coming from Debenture, and future off-site 
levies. 
 

21-03-246 That administration be authorized to proceed with the 
sale of the land and transfer of title for amalgamation 
back into the quarter. 
 

Caitlin Waiting on land transfer 

April 13, 2021 Regular Council Meeting 
21-04-313 That administration proceed with further developing the 

Offsite levy bylaw taking into consideration the average 
Canadian offsite levy is 2.5% –5 %. 
 

Byron Motion 20-11-759 

April 28, 2021 Regular Council Meeting 
21-04-337 That Mackenzie County support and submit the 2021 

FRIAA grant funding proposal for Mackenzie County 
FireSmart Home Assessments (EOI-21-13) project. 
 

Don  

May 11, 2018 Regular Council Meeting 
21-05-391 That administration reach out to non-profit 

organizations for proposals to proceed with a “Fall 
Community Clean-up” and bring back findings to 
Council. 
 

Don In progress 

21-05-419 That administration develop a Charitable Donations 
Policy. 
 

Jen In Progress  

21-05-429 That administration proceed with submitting an offer to 
purchase for the land required for Storm Pond “A” as 
per policy and discussion. 
 

Byron Waiting on title transfer 

May 26, 2021 Regular Council Meeting 
21-05-462 That Administration proceed with issuing a Request for 

Proposals for the detail design and construction 
engineering for the La Crete North Sanitary Trunk 
Sewer. 
 

Byron In progress  

21-05-464 That administration proceed with upgrading the airport 
lighting at the Fort Vermilion (Wop May) Airport from 
halogen to LED. 
 

Byron  

June 8, 2021 Regular Council Meeting 
21-06-497 That administration move forward to attempt to 

accommodate the Senate Selection and Referenda 
Votes, excluding the use of Special Ballots. 
 

Len/Carrie  

21-06-498 That Mackenzie County attempt to gain representation 
in the next policy framework replacing Canadian 
Agriculture Partnership. 
 

Len  

June 23, 2021 Regular Council Meeting 
21-06-543 That Mackenzie County acquire 3m of land on the east 

side for the future road widening of 100 Street.   
 

Caitlin CM 21-09-632 

21-06-546 That the Minister of Agricultural and Forestry be invited 
to a Council meeting. 

Len  

119



Motion Action Required Action By Status 
 

Council and Committee of the Whole Meeting Action List Page 6 of 9 
2021-10-12  

 
July 14, 2021 Regular Council Meeting 
21-06-226 That administration work with the Ferry Campground to 

formulate a plan to obtain the lease for the creation of a 
new campground. 
 

Don In progress 

21-07-531 That the property at 1030 Tower Road in Zama be 
publicly advertised and put up for sale with a closing 
date of August 14, 2021. 
 

Jen Ongoing 

21-07-532 That Unit 1051 be sent to La Crete Auction Mart for the 
July 24, 2021 consignment sale. 
 

Willie  

21-07-540 That Councillor Jorgensen works with administration on 
submitting comments regarding the Draft Conservation 
Agreement for Wood Bison. 
 

Byron  

21-07-541 That Mackenzie County apply for the Canada 
Community Revitalization Fund in the amount of 
$500,000 to fund downtown improvements for Fort 
Vermilion. 
 

Byron  

August 17, 2021 COW Meeting 
21-08-084 That administration bring back a 10-15 year history for 

lodge payments. 
 

Jen Remove, presented at 
Sept 14 

August 18, 2021 Regular Council Meeting 
21-08-563 That Administration advertise Bylaw 1231-21 to include 

an amendment to the deferral option to include a four 
(4) year deferral program as discussed. 
 

Caitlin Advertised. Public 
hearing at 2021-09-14 
CM 

21-08-568 That the budget be amended by $7,500 to hire a 
nonprofit group to split and stack the fire wood at the La 
Crete Lagoon with funding coming from the General 
Operating Reserve. 
 

Jen Remove, presented at 
Sept 14 

21-08-574 That the County supply furnishings for the Zama rental 
properties and that Policy ADM051 the Facility Rental 
Policy and the Fee Schedule Bylaw 1194-20 be brought 
back to the next Council Meeting for amendment. 
 

Don Complete 

21-08-586 That Mackenzie County waive the Off-Site Levy and 
Municipal Reserve fees for the donated portion (11.89 
acres) of NE 9-106-15-W5M to facilitate the 
development of a new Medical Facility in the Hamlet of 
La Crete. 
 

Caitlin At time of development 

September 14, 2021 Regular Council Meeting 
21-09-607 That Leaders International be engaged for CAO 

Recruitment. 
 

  

21-09-608 That the Bursary recipient repay half of the bursary due 
to evacuation/Canada Post issues. 
 

Jen Letter sent 

120



Motion Action Required Action By Status 
 

Council and Committee of the Whole Meeting Action List Page 7 of 9 
2021-10-12  

21-09-609 That Council award 1 recipient as presented for the 
total of $1000. 
 

Jen Letter sent 

21-09-610 That a tender for the maintenance of Zama Access 
Road be advertised. 
 

Jeff  

21-09-611 That a tender for the maintenance of Chateh road be 
advertised. 

Jeff  

21-09-612 That administration advertise for a grader 
operator/equipment operator position for the Zama 
area. 
 

Jeff  

21-09-615 That the bid received for the Fort Vermilion Waste 
Transfer Station caretaking Contract be rejected due to 
budget and be retendered with an opening date of 
October 12, 2021. 
 

Don  

21-09-618 That the 2021 Operating budget be amended by 
$94,967 for the Gravel Pit Clearing & Overburden 
Removal to $394,967 with funds coming from the 
General Operating Reserve. 
 

Jen Complete 

21-09-623 That second reading be given to Bylaw 1231-21 being 
the La Crete Offsite Levy Bylaw be tabled until further 
date. 
 

Byron  

21-09-632 That administration bring back to the next meeting 
remaining portion of 100 A street that isn’t required for 
future intersections. 
 

Caitlin In progress 

21-09-634 That the budget for the Hamlet of Zama –Water 
Treatment Plant Upgrading Project be amended by an 
additional $220,000 with funds coming from the Water 
& Sewer Infrastructure Reserve. 
 

Jen Complete 

21-09-637 That administration obtain required approvals and 
agreements with affected landowners for the West La 
Crete Road ditch cleanout. 
 

Grant  

21-09-638 That the 2021 Zama Trailer Furnishings One Time 
Project Budget be amended to include an additional 
$8,500 with funding coming from the General Operating 
Reserve. 
 

Jen Complete 

21-09-644 That a commemorative sign be placed at the Heritage 
Centre in La Crete and the Fort Vermilion lean-to 
museum highlighting the contribution that Bill Neufeld 
had in the paving of the Hwy 88 Connector. 
 

Don/Len  

21-09-646 That council organize meetings with the 17 
municipalities at the 2021 Fall RMA conference to 
discuss the Fire Bans in Hamlets within the Forest 
protection Areas and followed with a meeting with the 
Minister of Agriculture & Forestry. 
 

Carrie/Len  

121



Motion Action Required Action By Status 
 

Council and Committee of the Whole Meeting Action List Page 8 of 9 
2021-10-12  

21-09-657 That the Tax Recovery Auction for properties under tax 
arrears be set for February 23, 2022. 
 

Jen In Progress 

21-09-658 That administration work with the Fort Vermilion School 
Division to complete a trade and land transfer for 
properties adjacent to the La Crete Distribution 
Pumphouse and Fort Vermilion Public School. 
 

Byron  

21-09-660 That the 2021 One Time Project Budget be amended to 
include $125,000, for the Asset Management project 
with $75,000 in funding coming from the General 
Operating Budget, and $50,000 from Municipal Asset 
Management Program (MAMP) grant. 
 

Jen Complete 

21-09-662 That administration obtain verbal estimates for the cost 
of removing the 2 bridges on highway 88. 
 

Len  

21-09-667 That information regarding action item 16-05-354 be 
put together and a meeting requested with AEP at fall 
RMA convention. 
 

Carrie  

October 12, 2021 Budget Council Meeting 
21-10-673 That the Frontier Veterinary Services Contract be 

extended for one year ending December 31, 2022. 
 

Grant  

21-10-677 That the Strom Pond “A” Budget be amended by 
$40,000 with funds coming from the Water and Sewer 
Infrastructure Reserve. 
 

Jen Complete 

21-10-680 That the unqualified (due to missing Mackenzie County 
Business License) ‘Road Maintenance – Grader 
Service’ Tenders be returned to the senders without 
opening Envelope #2. 
 

Jeff  

21-10-686 That administration allocate $2,294,400 from 
Unrestricted Surplus to the General Capital Reserve in 
the amount of $1,540,000, and the Surface Water 
Management Reserve in the amount of $ 754,400. 
 

Jen Complete 

21-10-689 That the job description for the Equipment Operator II in 
Zama be modified and re advertised as an out of scope 
position. 
 

  

21-10-691 That the Office Shower project be renamed to Council 
Chambers Windows. 
 

 Complete 

21-10-693 That administration incorporate the 2021 One Time 
Carry Forward projects in the Draft 2022 Operating 
budget as discussed. 
 

 In Progress 

21-10-694 That the review of 2022 On Time Projects discussion 
be TABLED for future discussion. 
 

  

21-10-696 That Administration proceed with the sale of the closed 
portions of 100A Street to adjacent landowners at 

  

122



Motion Action Required Action By Status 
 

Council and Committee of the Whole Meeting Action List Page 9 of 9 
2021-10-12  

assessed value with all associated costs being borne 
by the buyer with the exception of those costs 
associated with registration of a waterline URW where 
required. 
 

21-10-697 That the north portions of 100A Street (adjacent 
landowners) be sold back for the same price it was 
originally purchased to the adjacent landowners with all 
associated costs being borne by the applicant. 
 

  

21-10-699 Minister of Infrastructure  Birthing Centre  
 

Minister of Environment Bridge Campsite  
Crown Land Recreation  
Tree Salvage  
Hay Zama Bison 
 

Minister of Municipal Affairs Municipal Downloading 
Petition  
Taxation Lease Lands (non energy) 
Disaster Services Funding 
Agreement 
 

Minister of Ag & Forestry  Tree Salvage 
Fire Ban 
 

K-Division  Enhanced Police 
 

 

  

 

123



124



125



126



127



128



A Sustainable, Vibrant, and Diversified Community with Opportunities for All 

 

  

 
4912 50 Avenue, Box 69 

Kitscoty, Alberta   T0B 2P0 
Ph: 780.846.2244 

Fax: 780.846.2716 
www.vermilion-river.com  

 
 

 

October 4, 2021 

 

 

 

Minister of Health 
423 Legislature Building 
10800-97 Ave 
Edmonton, AB T5K 2B6 
 

 

To Honourable Copping, 

The County of Vermilion River Protective Services includes eight fire stations, of which 
seven perform medical first response. This capacity has been delegated to those stations, 
which are often in a rural setting, with expected delays for advanced medical care such 
as those performed by paramedics.  

 

The County of Vermilion River Fire Service (CVR FS) has an annual call volume of 
approximately 700 – 800 calls, with over 30 per cent of these being medical first response. 
The remainder of the calls, like motor vehicle collisions, also contain an element of patient 
care, meaning County Firefighters are a critical link in the pre-hospital survival chain. 

 

With improved statistical records, since February 2021, the numbers indicate that access 
to pre-hospital care, such as primary and advanced care paramedics, has been quite 
delayed in our region. Often, County Firefighters will be on-scene for 30 minutes or more, 
waiting for ambulance. This is a sharp increase from even two years ago, when County 
Firefighters showed up, provided patient care and usually were relieved within a 10 
minute window. Call logs have also shown that ambulances that are dispatched are 
coming from outside the region, such as Elk Point, Wainwright and as far away as Cold 
Lake.  

 

 

129



A Sustainable, Vibrant, and Diversified Community with Opportunities for All 

 

  

 
4912 50 Avenue, Box 69 

Kitscoty, Alberta   T0B 2P0 
Ph: 780.846.2244 

Fax: 780.846.2716 
www.vermilion-river.com  

 

 

With the need for urgent medical intervention expected to raise in the future, a better 
plan has to be implemented to ensure that our rural residents get the care they deserve 
and that our volunteer first responders are not placed in an extended position of care 
and exposed to situations they are not equipped to perform.  

 

The need for more staffing, ample access to advanced medical care and a reduction 
in dispatch delay must be addressed. The first hour, as you know, is the most critical. 

 

Best regards, 

 

Lonnie Wolgien, Reeve 
County of Vermilion River 
 
Cc:  Vermilion-Lloydminster-Wainwright MLA Garth Rowswell 
 All Rural Municipalities 
 

130



131



132



IL

y .4

Al

133



-a-

TIA.A acknowledges that AIhefla crown land outdoor recreation lakes place on

traditional tertitory with respect of Treaties 6,7,84 and lowe further scknowtedge

the hometands of the Métis, sf a eight Métis Setttements, the six Métis Regions of the

Métis Nation, ssd the diverse histories and cultures of alt the Indigenous Psoptes of

these scaditional serritodes. We are grateful to walk alongside our Indigenous brothers

and sisters torespect, nurture, recreate on. and apprecitte the tssd tnd waterways that

make up what we now biow of as Alberta

134



Atbe,tans are passionate and active’ ert’rle yr recte’v: on enthusiasts! With Use prairies in the south and lie

east, foe foothills and the mountains in rite tsar: artS ties bereal blest fl the noth, A belies is is!esserf s’si:ti Cn Land Outdoor
-iiclmnatrira]Iicrtageand an ahutielun: rIvers to ci outdoot ,ec,ea:io,r opisertun .ties Represenling more

-

than 40 ni iii ion hectares of the province, access so ftealrtsy rrovstt laurie Recreation
ia rise backisone of Athena’s booming outdoor tectest Oti roescrriy

Outdooitectea:, orsis atesource-based ec000nsy and, like or’ reaeurtte-reliant economies. underutarttlins -

-

rite suppty atd d,sr tiout err ci outdoor recreation tesmurces it the its: step in suppott’ng a strong outdoor - - - - - -

recreasiorr erotrorrre - ‘‘

-

Ttsis study was commisstoned by the Tourism tndustr yAssociation of Albetta tTIAA) and ttforrtred Crown. land
tittoetyis tire cotstribtttiorcr tstt r,ttt:eturrce or nineteen 101 otttdocr t ecteatiots uset groups- its irtention was - - - -

to quansifyand tepottorr outdcci tecreution act s°:y trait citse:iortt,l:esn ret to, while cairo irsrtj the Crowrilabds die one of thedeitning features nIAibrtta. These lands, o,sired by A ltet:eits

geograpitic sod economic ti-it tire errol these impacts, eotowtng accepred models and methods-
- and e:e’vo,rieti’rt try tire’ rriesXtsciat ytcreetametst on cur heftUir, sorts- slit pert the p cc rrce”u

-

- economy as acitetisired part of A Ire ruts iriettriiy ettd A bettatss’ way of life. Courttrrs; rig

- aptttceiteateiy 40 iri,i”earstt,ctaies,ot 60 per cent of rite picv’nce, cretin nods itsclttde

is that Albr,tattr sØeesd $2.3 billion ettctosstt ‘,rrri t ousdoot rtrcteetit) publ’c isnds munuejed srr dm the Pub c l,erels Act, and ptovinciat jr,rks tinS teee:eiar
areas tuiatsaged under the Pro’:- sc-c Paths Act, WiltmceeWildernrsb Patk 4’:: so

antI atsottrer $376 iii iii ion onrecreation equipment and elated sccessceim Ceoderne so Areas. Eco’oitioi Reserves. ‘us:iir,r Aleas nod Hersiuge ttange’eitds /.r:

(or these trs On average. Albettatt outd enthesisstastsettd $258 per day ,,,
.

.

;0,

tripand $757 per overnight trip
A’titourjti 0 pen d,tg a ,r’ect to recreational tr tsr to crown andrea ‘p accounts em as pee cent of e’e hot to r . , . . .

GDP, isa etusp oyrnetr: resuiting (cow tiles spending is 6.1 0 tttes greater that ttre emptoyment in rite . .

forest and logg’trg rtrdustry itt cdlii con:: equetes to 63 tee cent orthe number of jobs ‘n tire ugrrcuttura I

‘trctttutiy

Orttdoot reoeation .5 err:er’tr 5 u toe:? era witts tire pr’.’stesector and governments on a global scale

recognizing the imtttrttse soc’ut insportance and itretstee vies economic ccrfstributions of the outdoor

recreation Ce errotsiy to rrrurryccuotrirs, deliberate actions have be en undrttukers to invest in and grow the

otardoorrrcteu:’orre eotrottty

To support Alberta’s ubililyto uttucis the potrtttiat of its outdoon.ecrration economy arid, itt fine ptoceaa,

stem the gtowing trekage of visitation and recreutietlat investment itotsr A bet Is to tre,glrbouteng

Provinces, this study proposes so speciltc action atetus to growAlbetta’s outdoor tecteut ots economy.

sin scars a qigy Atbt cussLdotdaslo t tsryis

135



‘I

136



Outdoor recreation

60%
of Alberta is
Crown Land

S

S
Land Use Framework Reqic,

O,or land ‘:do& aeadencc,,ised ci da use aid

cerr.&ii cuic,c, ‘eaeal.on aclM:eg hal oc.ox al deer. aids

hi? S rleceasNEy ks, sad Ic

Laid and ea:e? basn<l art: 0 165

National Park

Proviqo al Park I Prn:eo:ed K__

Publio Lands*

61 aIhncidier,i ijndarrtdaoi Awicairi Encarta1

137



Outdoor recreation opportunity Shifting tows

An outdoor recreation opporlu,riryis late sltrlrtv forel,srirlrvrclsrat to take Aihealas crown lands have long been recognized lot Iheec000mic

part in heir desired aclieily, in a desiredeeurention 55115155 in a desired conlrihution Ihey make lhrough ‘nduslr,es such as oil and gas.

oaltttolaegioni Inning, grazing and eoreslfy The role these lands play in the context
1::.

ol growiag a tobust ouldoot recrealion economy haee ‘in: been lwmamgapa tallow

as widelyrecognized nor as deliberalely pursued-As realf,,med in g0mm5e0tm0neyes

I Activity + Setting j x Natural Region AthecIawmLsndYisisn.]andutedfor outdoorrecreation recreallnnenxuree

— t • taviewed as a land lose Ihar simply nerds lobe managed 10 minimize eeaaateabtttlyandeellotyt

— . ecrea .IOfl ‘ ppor.unii impacts and coneicle with eneironmesli’nauoe end Sand uses aedmainrrnns Iheajatwat

Such a maeagement philosophy hss created e reactive approach
emaaronmeelofthep/eCex

BENEFITS
to crown Sand mjtdoor recreation and as underreatized outdoor Alberlaga and vieito,aso

recreation cconomy White other industries on crow’s land hose CIIJOY• landmanagem

o ,

atlicuteled Sire conleibtilion they eagle to Aibettas ecolronsy, sod Ihe see (acingcbetlengea

((i PuC/ government works ‘0 establish Ihecordisions eor tiroseinduslries 10 beca,aee nfinceeas’eg

‘ttccz9,
succeed,Albertee ouldooe recrealion economy han not eeceieed the demands iorwzreaaion

- - eame suppart As n resutt, outdoor recreation on c,ossn node it not and teailn on public od.

Cnmnrllrrly Eewewir
lonirk a recognized or understood to bet major economic sector that holds — Crown Land

cnn s-rjrrtcerrt poses: a to grow and diwreufy Albettan ec000lny. Vision

I Cs unesuaoca A ber:as clotan Sands and walers fuel the very

a5, Ott to Sr 0 Ire Ire oe Ihis boom’ng ndualry and ala I

- _ii •%-3--- in menegemenl focus is needed to tecnte the future potential of
— — — Aiherlas outdoor recreation economy

_______

:.-: E.T T

?? .:t*L’W\

___

11s

138



Albertas outdoor recreation resources

LSe a escace based eccsc u.aje,s:j:ja,g ss•Jp$y and d cli x: SO Ci WiC(aC4 iecieatoea

ies,res S lie fsc -ceo —sjniI’mj -sc s:iei cc eccnonay Thach Ihese CS n need ci spdei a.

he Go,e,reoenl of 4:5fla tas led rain (alevcaJs jor sutdx ,ec,ea: on [easier ,ec,ea:rwi

seiliags. sce,ic sakes c crc 5.-il ned,, ad: on io naapp:rD he [5.re re salad icc CSS Cc ec:be

and when cs 0 da:e bess :: ase:s cci ecake scowl parro pG ry ce-cekçrnenl and dec sic,, ma.iiq

srpçcw: ci ‘he c2c isi—elie— ercerIiw hi’s absence rca ceros recceaiii ri-oliVes raraici

be mean rL .ycrnsde’sc randy-act pt4arliy parwed

V

I
C) C

a

:F•
a) O_n•_i z

•_. 1
*
*
a
*a”

Albeflas c,osisrai,ao.,-lca Rieleseersacarylli

139



• 1

Albertans are
Passionate and Active

OfAlbertanssurve

Outdoor Enthusiasts [ 924°/
visited public lands

83.2%
visited provincial parks &

‘‘• ..— protected areas

74.83L
-

isited a national park
Ailsertans ares tilnaleri to ‘jove taken are 11 1 mil0o’n oaldoo, recreation -

trips a clown lands (2019120). More lit’s ten ntilhcnt ill 1 pet cent) 01 tlwse -

trips were day trips and 20 mt ion (21.6 per cent) sloe ove,,tight 51 25-

Each year...
Publiciands. altiell nave z:-- Crown lands thioughout the province
historicallyirceived support Albertans’ outdoor pursuits — but

33 0% linleproacunennldno’ not equally Of all crown land outdoor
lecreation planning. . . . -

of all outdoor recreation trips by Albertans management recreation trips.
occur on public lands ir,rtasltaclsre ineesimeels,

host 33 pe’ cenl 01 ouldoo, 61.1% occur in the South Saskatchewan
,ecrealinn rips annually.

23.0%

occur in the North Saskatchewan3&3/
occur in provincial parks and protected areas 9.2% occur in the Upper & Lower Athabasca

3.5% occur in the Upper & Lower Peace
2fl7°, -

•fl.I• 1 0
3.1% occur in the Red Deeroccur in national parks

I Aa.,l.’ic.e.,L..dc-.,ionn. Reeen’,a.Etn.-a’y l-.lrs

140



141



---1

aiçoa1b40aPSO0941100(3PGOl(-4t0Øêb010aspoootaI-i000aa90

0adiAowioo[peaAqP041000100000110odijipUeU00013UoSl1000pjaqooniiooxpuaddv0th0041

oiaqpaoiodoiaao00010030iuijpoijowdiiiooojU’S0110duoOpU0000)3UO0033300!101130AtiowqOia,qi
so)(%0090w0[100- o[opl000000000NJPd

511001100ii 1001p41o9IP!0lI.do!0oooopog_.iqd(50)00tIONtioploaq&ooiSNJPd-Spool
l0S

01100d
1!s0N09

-1L:-IOOJOTOcIPPG!OoJd-050!OlIqad
J

Iaia!IPN

iD
0

:;
00:000g

IN)
)u0I0oodios,(%00001000032(%0t)0Alma2

aDeedIAW]
0419’Ml—11?O43NP00P0VshiL—

-‘

S
moo

S’IJPd(1)balp
I-rI00041ShOdosololils

06)0000hi010q,S_101011dId
o

I‘IN03oS
S’IjPd01woO‘110d

!oI000IOPO0)0‘‘‘
op-°——-41w)Noida,--blocooiaoov10P’11001d--)%g)oooto0

—
--(%0090OI4s

-

L)°$!
f

O
ISM100I000I£

0141(Got)(oat!(wfl006100j,20tOOala,3‘Fljas2
00011w-IlL—0,0,4011(0L—0’SOMONHI-—

(Ott)

eoseqeqjyJOMO]‘mddnhi
fl0000L—90(003VW091ti-N’S0.0110

-----
-ueoqwsestunas

(%o)Ooiq)--‘oOI5111341PUUIUMOJOOscdlii6uooopow00!U(010305dOt
010i0i03-5a01D5SqrndspuqA1I00O3S13.i,5.SOlId

(os)
10P°!°°’d-091000!dlSBDoS

-0!I1111d
(Go)Oiii,tojop

bObbIN

boPi00000is
--TadliPUP!uMomAqi0uooOajAq501000UOIiOdioIIJOd

00011110-
-(soLo/0141oP(sob00000L003pot;-.:A(s!130500110100as000151005411100000003000050)0001000305000)000PIUMOiDJOI0011nqi110p01011110

Eot00oO5dpt0500)0l°41
pt0IIpI0O02I

Oudaa,1U!N00000H410:11)00!OUOlOai301i00p100JOA)piaoq[ploiiodo)r,o(laoaIqouoSPOOl0)4100)3

(%PU0[l[d[013p2Get)000105)4po

,AOO2L—0/010005144—OPO0LLadAjpuqUMOJO‘uoibai

ueMaqole)IsesLflJONAqseiiijaeDuljeAljowdujuoiajoajioop;n

142



UMqIONSs6

PIop1MziqwIL

qi!El
uMaqo.nse:

duuj6iuieno•.

ofadsiqbiu
USAiiIflSSIWON

I
q

fUI
9 it-

V
,cIl

—

4
14tjI$JtUIeloeJn,0ike,iii110WOJeUISAA!I0l]llsuoIJoqIv

5q(UI0£)NtOIIUOIiJO(t111r,gqilsiAmUIemaiDe,01£101111110WOil$WOPISOJmirnOeidqt
[ILlSA)JUICIA]flitoidILLltIa4UltflpusaqndILLISA———

tatIMiatub:Au:sopus:sLit]allVs:qfl-iISElvclii]uoiieai,ai-

-suoiOaiasocici0110i20i01ALOESiaM0dMsluapuocIuaJAotinuJO00)i000iclaqiso[aMSOU!

115)5.115JIlIL1VM0lot’IdIrlug)’£pIuUssuuIIaq]V0)15,5)1tinaIUdiaIJSO01A]a11’]10050aimsuoibaiawaqaomdsaiq]oaLuosIs:uapuadsajAaojr,sIWOsuoibaiOMI0114

--0.11:1011101]011110uMoqIsuoLoauUIaIUaJoaJ0)£10111ISOSUamUo!GOJU,ILOL[soII:LJ•05OLIU•.SLIt1011155
i..,-.’::--—suoi0ail[alf.ssctoqsMoaqainUijaIlsSJ00p)lI0ado£015001suosoaiiaIJloUIaOl)taqiaiJq,sWOJJAlMA

•sdp4Tqbj,j4opucIUMflJtJoqiöue100111]UlOi0000ILS2.0I0U0!SaJOWOUIJILl)UISPUOIUMOJOUO0190320]0101011:1l[ISL[III?luIHOlIiVhUM

:1’

143



144



Trip related expenditures DiatihutIon of teip expenditures by crown landiifse 20191213

-

figure2 - : - -

On average, Alberta’s outdoor enthusiasts spend:
Horn. .Tr: PeRcale

$258 a r2I.8%VE
- a 26.5% 516%

perdaytrip 0 35.0%

______

30.5%

8 8 38.6% 0 22.5%

$757
Total -286% - Total • 33.5% Total 37.9%

per overnight trip Public Lands (3 Provincial Parks National Parks

Spelid rig ashes soil Ic-ata. p by crowar au 8 vIse as wel: 55 by stage of trip lFgule 1 and Figure 2)
Approximate iv US ol upending occurs at eacits age of the trip lifecycte — at home, en-route and in - -- - - - - -

dest nat on lb a r she plopotton of spa ii rig made Ida Grout Sal) rcu 1 / h gher for tr Pu to
national parks (51 6 per cent) ard lowest icr rp opubolands (225 per cent) Dtstrlbuiloq of apedang by hip related expenditure-category

Average expvndtturo por trip by crown land typo 2019)20 Of all tr p related SIte ii ng

lure 1

- r$4172l -

Z3
25.0% 10.7% 13.6%

a Q Gasoline stations commodotion Food & bewrage stores

- 0
S24t.62

- t 17.0% 12.9% 10.5%
IA I 6197t4 — Tt (1 tti&eo
• ‘s I Si 345 3] ‘1 °aw Equupment rentals Aestatrants bars & cafes I Acluvaty fees

Øs597.43
-

. 9.1% 1.2% 0.1%
Day Taps Oeernighi Iwo’

Other aelail Guided sours - C ar/tttck rentals

a yshlic Lards Q a Provincial yanks ll a National Paths

22 Ai beutws class Laid sstdasr teeeeasss Eeoesrsy Alheslau cross land Outdssr enoseotiss Preneney I 23

145



Equipment & accessory expenditures

Ta sa3p&: er dra a:ecases. A tarts, 9a,seli06% rxlchase a wOe aloe a’: :1w-: ,1o11 -

aid auressces hi (SrI cu:cac-a esrus sets who eespcsoed IS lIe see€y Co aersje ssao4GlO 282 re;

saieIc.d 3:l:o Col Ihase rcrases 5-sI net a ha,jsehOs js.dias€ the er -lam, a4 he nose:

s’en: c,- these leans se-es c-eels

Distribution of spending by equipment & accessory expenditure category

Total a-r7.a’ e,1€o: aid arcessoy-elatec spano 15 5 till b.,tes as Ic

Paehase jIlli

ATV/sse&a see ISiS 85287 ITt

4x4 a III I il’IiW y — 101% —

Sncsere64e 08% 8894 65%

loadInotorcydef5eow5ilx 66% S5413 -— 61%

Oeyerleeeelsra 084 706% 83258 130%

Peolooliyeeqjipméq - -tt--.-.‘ Th -it $514

56% aCS4e SI’

Noe meloed boa s% 157% s,ipJ4r
150% 5264 35%

fl85508,/bOOS : - - - -- 3471
— 5656 3.4%

621% 8988 134%

FIsIlq S Iw,.0h’q c,yipioeno 8502 47%

Sea’,- sposSe slel—-; 777% 5947 448.

E5%2811& rxo,eabon dide IO1 0 m&wne,ct son ,4pia 66%

EqspeoeaoSIoce.rOaqls000s1a.(ep 473% 7:8 45%

else - -

____________

— - - -: 3% ••S684I
‘‘

36% -

Tooose,e rm.O bso,.4,c0O OP...4 00 .4.,4 I .po..da SI 2.202

241 A160I10sC(44,LllIdCejI410, 840 IooroSloo.y

146



A comparison of annual household spending

I Al Cl*pl LanDiidc.o,

T,anor! alien

Si 5,633

Reatir.q K
- OthetDrwIt

$200

All
R€treoIon

S4,594

I TobaccoK
I Alcohol

I Ejucalion I

$1,719

a

HeaiIh Care

$2,772

Mbeila clown [ins OcISOM keonention hennotIn 27

147



r

—,
Outdooq recreatIon a much more hens Cannea terra dams o(Atoerrars $

lice pawerix? ecceiomrdr e th s tjnt untapped potential 2 8.

—‘AibAcr r pe23uito onaovmtandceitdoorrecrepjiontrps billion GDP
annuali? and sscsei another S3 76 mdi ml on ideteat on equnEn — 4

ahdaccesxoees retar do these ir pa F hype, tept ‘a spent ml trps o
tôoatimsot pa k 174 pee cent s spent on trips ip peavatat parka and

peotcted areasartd22Gpercaentoetirpatopubtclands Threspandeg of provincial GDP
coettibures Sd Sb has In pros npat GOP (ncturi 19 erred tndtacl and

educed eflecis) and generates S ejinithon n tax re,AntJes of w’btcht

Stpeecentcexnih,ftom irpie add spin I rip end 2Qpacenl (mm

egupmenrpsecpasex million in tax revenue

Att]ntejhspr tel p lebtedtqjeciear onal trips ocrovin ends crihri
acdman sex n.epeec.ntolAhhe raeGDPtheoapopmeiairesatng t

/ 1frot9ihs prnrlgm1tin$sptm et4thnenspoyment n hetores J 5s a
and oogng ndiastty end errijpte&tp 63 pcI rétoi fls rt the sorcutturat J 4 ‘a 4l ‘

Andustr
‘I

I

b ii: : ji,$4 AZ:2y ,i’tr1 ;
;

I4,4% fr( i t t(4i •,‘/a p%h •itp )111fr14 *4)

I
‘I’’

‘%,,4t, 4.ecA

a4r n imt4 -

148



It; ta.ia

Crown land
outdoor
recreation
contributes
Ito’
InJ/O

of total
provincial
employment
(2019).

Jobs generated by crown land type

A Public lands -6,900

Provincial parks & protected

areas -8,600

(A3
National parks - 15,600

_____

Equipment spending -4,800

H Outdoor Recreation’
Crea(et Jobs & Attracts fr
BusInesses

—

tclarr1oiftt’ teiii1ho I iron n ha cc or ai; fl tire process of ar1rrrcw; raclyi rig tirsi tfrer yert

1lss5ts ri there by a a I I liar 04’ noon ‘ecreatroni appal tn’s a they oil

Orstrfoo ‘cued: art attracts Iamr!ea, skiled Isbaui. and Itrisrnessos to A icr’ In fact.

rrg’ fins of the pluificec ii tutu ui9y cleArly nnl outdoor rebeaIfbA quickybolne

rnaqrtcls for husiusesseo. I rrolesyroitaff atrd re:irees intro ale crokii’g ala active isa’

• -
quality of rio Cit as: lie, i la rcdjit sales queen, equipment mamulrc: urns. outdoor

Intl asliucture dcsrrrlrnlya ci Iii, icr a, Or pItas uiad castrloor lecrearioly rnanarjels. ouldoor

- eecrouNora alec des tir ousands of -cbs for AFE, altritis F

H -

36,000 fulltinIe equivalent jobs arecjctaciaeal byolbertaos
-

- sfsenrlinej on crown tasad ouidoor r rrHr.r,:r Ii - - i rprnrqtihWaas I urjr- 1 Alsuarn-aqe a .

for employees inihis seclo, is .t F 000- - t’ I

Gui ouldeot vocation does rise Iriiior,- If rid rerr:y firers eoaployeiaenl rrr Ilaulay other

seclots, aserell such as cod arid beverage, hole:s siad rodgrr evelats. ti atisfaer latron. z’

as it: ri cdrcat on I nanrea oflsera <n.mns.n.e,a.- a

‘ °%aa —
•‘

_ ‘‘ s.u?e

_________

I Atela sercos

A

•

errsriry I a

149



N:

150



Crown Land outdoor recreation can Crown land gateway
a communities

I) drive economic success in Gateway —

—
A Communities in many different ways! Crown land outdone enlirtisrasts

* ar5’’ - a a oFten spend money in gatewaya ii New Residents communities on iteves such

A * A”’ - a t”—”iins,’r[,l’J[,,l(”--,’ as equipment, gasoline. food

a
— a A a ratuact,teo,temle.sa,u and beverage, accommodation.

A * “ orllvrcsvv,!resr,’A’,r,-’h. ,ae supplies, guiding services, and

repairs. -
* -

___________________________________________________________

-,, This spending directly benefits

Al . Tax Revenue Et€EE
) j 4 4 1 4 * creatir5

* * npsoflsa!t.’’ Visto’ sPec ro avd acridly ccitt iaditect financial
* , * Cigil s’srv’y rases ,csvasere,revaiuvs bmefts. In turn, his econcOiic

* Tourism ,

era Iy.esoi gsvetnrevr -- U T activity createt and sapports
Visauas stIrs corners v ivoy tie -

,lmc’rvys” Iraicini, i. ‘ - as’ a stable local and vegional

roth
aivip1

rr p
.W I

‘ ‘ * wortutorcewhrctiisctilicaltothe- I weIl-t,viregoFmmsattiesthst
* • •

* are garewaystocromir lands.
tretbysed.n,vnit.s:’ii’,wclinii-’:aic’-/ * * * - - -
wntepennnrr’ai cluenacs

*
* *

l’teaithier Residents ‘“

— * Reijeemeng +

*

* * a :1

uawssa Investment Income

*
*

* real * r r tee r iii RettdYchbllm*inlMlgnteiaay

‘ 4 I r r ,5yt nomniulitrus itjIcrpvan• - -
-- ‘Outdoor ,OhcuOtiöireobtin’wies, t t Ste moreithely lnattra I ne a

Entrepfeneurs + Talent *
* a a

Gear Manufacturing
C V °ry

‘de a . . fastecgrolsatng wagstttan

i cat
lsca0Mvera

rif liii I sailed : : e Maita Street Bustnesues
cummnittuteswho do not have

*

*

* 4 _$t___________

!

:: : nra

Ladoiitdnafl I a teas Arbtcelsdotd P r S clan

151



r:
- to tchiion to kn\ mfcberteMt a.n land ottdoor reaeation a4taices

rMadandcos 3lgiandwd4sertq Z Wthnneandtnacaejanys.ce

[sesce bEnq ijen natsze. doa ,eaeali is a detthetate slta:egy ha can be p

deciate some of Merta% most coonpies social and pjhbc twath dsaenges end sales

gowerinents mosey. PIt*at itactlaty repcesens a sigvftais healun and eccxtor-c

tasden. w.th an essknna:ed asiun cons tocasasians of $t4 labo, hem discs hen Ill

ef feels cr4 an schitianal $4.3 fi:on fl ndiece cons such as toss ci wa.kplace

prodtcCvisy. Investing in enttancements of ousdoor recreation can

improvethe physical and meets’ health and wett-heinq ofathernens”

• Stippat convrtun’ty devetceetnent and social coltesta,”

• Bufd conYnsfity pcde and a:taclvnenr

• Reöjce befraZoue& prooerrs nyojth sic - ns! attenlon deft t and hyDaactv r

setf-soeldence, sef denl ly sod stecess n le

-. -t: ‘ .

ca’s costs1

stPs coiween Ian en and tends
S agedgiccs’

4 r

I,
4 :-j

152



-- rr --

a

:n addition. as a result of COVID-ig eastriclions, Change in number of trips for recreation due

- -

-. the numterof households on’ ynrrthng day trips to COVID-19 restrictions

artdoeeoorgtit Sr ps decteased by more tttstt 23 pm 175%

_____

Se

_____________ _

4%

________

0

Change In peISiO ofhousT”
snip; St 0 ssaeeau.; of chang-ii usaus patterns making trips for recreation due to COVID-19

_________

-215%

chic: tO COVID-t Prestr•ctions in geacrat, these restrictions —250%
trstct;tts,auelta (sitter re-eats0 ot 14% —

Itouset Os ask notpsrit25pereff’ 11%
tr.

— -a .

decrease ;tt the neat ito-re-i houeetao’ds maiinó
.

n’ COVIt)1 (trestrictions alsocas sedaclrarrrtesrrltete Change in location of trips for recreation due

sr icr,etncjh tr p ough tine smoi of
- ,.%

rcrse lose to make tt ecreas e Visits to COVID 19 restrtcttons

Irosi st-Sorts rnskosg dayirifit onlvsncte ased sct p -1’Itey reduced visitation to national parks by 6.5 3.3%
- -.vss no ctaatrge 0 Pro pact-itt of isousysottis Oit9- I - per ceo - eased the;: Visits to ttrovirrciat paiks 2-5%

task-rig c;rrn:glr: ttips 0.0% qi std reocestie 2.5 per cent, andvisits to

- - -, - r -,
-- pht4 ratsds tatter 3 per ccitt

kt

•°
‘*i

- Shut Itt S bIstros bee-atlas e at
%Atbertansn2O2tttasCOVf lustre ons -S -%

-.>. - - -

- -5,—s - . ‘tt it, arch tepuietitmuts lot-yactOl rtts;stucturrj %p.

and s (Tsb c edem :ekOm 4

2.5%

-6.5%

-

St I Atberla’scmwat.ardoatdsarlteeieassa Emanate Atbarta’sctauurtaaaostdaa.aerrastisarssaams

153



“ j3:fr

dIWijopJ Ziat9itiIeJ

Around rheworlel. private sector and government re recognizing the
immenoenocial importance aid imprea ye econcnii000ntiibutionn — I
of the oLildoor recreation elony Gtcwaily, it’ an n a try becernrng

more diverse and stronger each year. Deliberate act on are already

being taken around the wodd to invest in and support the growth of
thisaegmerteofourviaitoreconomyAlbelahaapettodo oats
deliberate way.

outdoor tectvaeljon is entering a new era Now in the time for Albums

todeliberatety untock the potentiat outs sutdoelr recreatton economy

and ciaim its place in the Canadien and international outdoor
recreation economies

4L

--

t•5• %-.*;
%•

154



7.’

Provid ng nd enhancing crown land outdoor recreat on is critical for mainlali, rig the —

long standing trad Ions and wayol life of Albert n he ill also e ens ‘to Alberta’

economic furor

I
A delihee te foes on unlrxtking the poeeenl. I our outdoor recrealioo
wIll atlracl n w nvealmant and buain 10 she peov lice, create

‘neat opporlun ties forAlberlans and scene to va lion in Alberla,
-

- and alow the leakage of ri t lion and recreational awealmanl that
Alberta has been missing exit on --“K,,,

To begin thi new era. sd to unlock tin potential or our outdoor
recreation economy,tlve ecior needs -

--

“ dlisawfl5,. -• ey4ep. 450

Alberta’s outdoor sector is fr gmenled and lacks a unified and

C’
coordinsled voice Though lb re are many outdooe organizations,
bu rises and not for profit ,the outdoor indu try has yes so come

together A unufed and cooedinated voce is cril cal for unlocking

thepo en i I of ih rndu try, and en 5mg ircng nd ffecluve

gcverrmsnt advocacy fur upporlive policy and unveslment

iii
Outdoor recreation is an cpportunily to help Alberta$thW ngtheo and diversify

its ecoeceny, wIde improvirigthe health and well-beinof

théfrovince kthö attractive place to live, 5:

the outdcoe recreation ecoiioisycaia pioaide a povethil tdai iveiesanoiusieseeiiy

ruraleawiomi eapecisliy those that are hat lyreliant on AlbEtThtradlgl natsIral

resource tectoea. As is shown,public lands aupporijust as many outdoor reomlico tripe

ennuaIn.but has lacked planning attention and infvasirucinjre investisienl and, aa a reaull,

generates far lees econcessic benefits compared to crown lands in other places.

L

‘a.

I a

ç’T

“

155



is
I S

- .
-.F

I

• ar ;• -
-

I
(e i.

2 SupportiVe crown land poitcy f 1 3 InVestment in newand reneWal of existing
—

I
crown land outdoor recreation infrastructure

Todate. ciown land poi C yecrrvs eutcios, err rea:ori as it landese — -:-. -. -

that rnedt lobe esanayjerl anti noi as art ia]unr, rises tiro,’d be - . . Wiintirnt its traits, te,,tttrit,t,e,rti-t, inert ta,irrnhen. staejillrj alIas,

nsrrltr,itnel ,snite,tah!ert :.ke-oht-, t,nr],r,orsal SO .•tt anti i]rs,ts’its - waler play perks o, otirer nlrea’ie,eiare. eaperrsiite’es on atitetoc’

V (oil and qars, ia,cstr y, rssinrng)• T he p,osi,sce ‘reeds a suppeeiive - I ‘Ci i-aeon in en,nr-entn,erit’irayr-d r]:frn: learnt iCtLlrrrs AIberta -

c,owri Iandj)oticy lrn,,ny-,vo,k, r-rit]r’e’n,Syon mutt C lassie, thai views - ,
outdooi tecteaiiott inhasi,uciuiein ition;tieai parks is u’grllj, ansi

ouidoa recteation as art i,,du,str y. arm dote, itt ro,irized foi growth. - outdoor recreation infrasr, norue, en pnbl’c land St lacking and

Proactive land use te: arrirrrtj ri,at establishes clear thjectiees for -

t.rri’teri I trrlourk ‘rig tire lenten a of ‘ho crowrr land onidoorrecrealiorn

the outdoor ,eurea rio’s economy aisd ensgrcd he integriiy ot and -
enorio’tiy ‘err rites go.itrirnient. rtriea te nests, art it rise, lines tnsilrlt it’

accesstoonrdoorteciear,oneeso,iices sre,etai,,ed enh,ecede.nd I a lice.. and in’sewed cu.dooe infeastinclnreto proeide ,ronel. inclusive,

ci Ott tC rind rId Art] is ii sea] ptlrlnl•srd titter access bin and egs iabte oppoilun lea for all Albeit in ds to invest

Into anti ssr]rmtoiring tire i,,o,eare iti and ,r,itr, onnr,,€,ir ref n,nros —
• a in creating world class outdoor espetiences that altoiss tin ptonince

amenities air dsereicvs vi ill Iseip eteeate the ecotronic Ue,rei -en at . . . .. to conspete or rise nations’ aird ‘mCI r,rat’onat mectaor,ec,ear’o,s

outdoa iOCiOi tiots 015 treir’. C iatt]]e
,i, - . - - - .

- economy stages.

v’
-

a

I it
a

Jr

•u

tI:

‘‘ LZIII

OW iS

i!;1*&!jk$ .t1r

441Mb, c I- ants t t e “ t. lbetncs Ladnutdoeeteeetoto sfpI4t

156



r:

4 InventoryIng of crown land outdoor recreation
resources

Outdoor recreation resources are the tifebtood niohe cotdcor
economy. yet Alberta lacks an up to date inventory of crown land
ouldooc recreation resources end amenities- Itre lac+c of inventory

puts the sector at great riskof not being etfectivety or meanitgfelty

included in tend use decisions that can negatively impact the sector.

Oats sir’ outdoor ret rea:ur, is frrrrrjsine,ttal Fop sitotitted crown iurrrl - -
- - - — - —

-

potrcydecaioes Mcrsut rag sad mon tor ng tire pe rormanceot the

crowpt arrrl err duo cc Pr oteco only sed ptrt C Its on sitoti ci be 1 woO a

espanded and ongoing to pc p rho secsot denrons pacts posit so a— —

copar bat ons tgccm nun es Alive, nsirtl Ii coromi =.. t

5, _atw —

S Office of Outdoor Recreation
°‘i I

ic.
°

— _1

— Skt2
srpsd’cr otanrourri the gtobetrave rcotaed that unteck sq their

outdoca ire eater pa oar ii ran as de her-actor llwe • a”t’-n —

lu oct at ens toaaweslata steel go rrt In otfpresof Outdco

I cc onsshoprovtde dccl cated attention tocootci nat rig and

cioirria g altepolicy environphrrrs. hssrness ettturrrion. insaawaenta in. - - -
- -4 - - I -

-

and Pr err salon ot the sutdnor recreat on ecotomy on crown anda r
on nor goeeternrent departments ‘a.- —

(parks F ends tnurtsm er. eel ore d ffeteat levels rfgovetnttaent and ,_..—
—‘ 4te

the private sector hose olftces jeduce govegimeatal slot listen to

lutalic coacerns. Ce’ p10cc harriers to access. ann tar 0’ iri7e t*ogrtms - — -- - - . —

that enccuragegrowth ci the in dust, y and protection of recreatorr -
- t -

resources, - -
- An

- C---—, - — -

—

__

a -

__

157



a

As

44 .1

A

*19 —

1 “ — Research aralys 5 repoel prcduc art and design wascampleteti by PC t sag is and Watrecc.i Consulting

H,.’..,

___

th I ?‘i4
U; ‘

-- - -.

- Members of the Alberta Outdoor Recreation Advisu,y Panel

• - - - - _, — - -

—_ .a—..,. The Alberta Outdoor Recrean-on Advisory Parri was established to guilt Clash anloirn tea research ansi
- -=-

-

- oL-s — -- -
- prcanote the survey teA tryrta’as TtkAwontd hke to acknowledge the following organizations For riteS

— iibiaegi teiaaute ftpna Statistics anada Iberia thatnaiewed
— support oiarsd participation ins heproec

—-
- genesnr rotal r tirvean - nd her associatedsofar

— of hceaettoida ins , —

—

Alan a Pec eatta & Parks Asso i Clue awl tic I

bliakerato Spit atio rUesitt5damong LUFregons thevatsu r
—_—

Aiptee club rat Canada A ci Ia

d-iprdipert p type (day art cact n:yhri and recreational activities, arid to obtain
-

Alberta chatbiag Assnciatinn eacncosat p-C- tc-sv--i--’a--tc s - A icc- to

nttaptosrort r p pcntlru Ic ant e5 alas available forcoonpteiroet oni ne Atbe Ia rq e I as I at cv ada l’ersl 5k A rasAssac ala

— y Slot 20iI Wri e 017 parses attempted toccetapiete sties Icy _-—
Albert I a As c S 1 P0 art Also a

—- jçemol4teted byoon-AIbeiraas SoS atasrya were’ too inconapleietoataa roe. en ash pita :i,ia 090 Ganteasscciatinoo PaduteAtbeila

s4jnto be tjiiplicataa. wad alto sad as nip data inc:udod iii I setespcase •Aitoorta DII HighwayVesicte Asasriuriar Pairs dad CompgiousO ownrrsAssnctatinset

wIa OI p° 13955
-

liv 7usc-d vs Use bass c na ,ss I — d-tC trot I ns°aaal.u
0 ‘an

I ft IL eglosa A as 3m air rig the rIm tt’ iaflalitd 1 S — e..a’ a -r -AS
P5cC III I veele levies AssxsvdK a. aol’

-cvaadrralonleea:hasaraaie’:-,-pnccs ovJcsiIes:Fet44rygcodas-iIlsci-.-a-eu -‘-rca • HIaOIIRooeannen5

toAtaCat bcaasei.cids Clvi p51511 ;is:c’sc., .io’a’ tccicu: vol -

ol I ae cean La Adow flatw Fescowy Abnts ci _dea -aatlea

158



Activity Participation by the Numbers

[opandilin.

M11b80 can’

H’kiogfwaLkinq/rnnoioq 4 l7t 301% 800% 0290 $001 249%

080,4616 1 ‘99’ 401% •SL 6295 126%

SkiInl!sOow0080dloo 1.066 80% 399% $467 $233 tO 0%

rsh jt 441% rsaot —— $t00 43%

MOnIEs!,) 6,koe 0676 000 399% 0340 0109 47%

Crosn-oouot,y oStEnq - 6639 4.8% 342% I 10 170 32%

HonIng 0586 42% 268% $1,Otl 0183 1)3%

861, 09
°°‘°

0529 09% 291% $064 2.8%

474 0462 34% 28.5% 01.310 002 36%

Sr8wo08tg 0341 $‘°I 14%

bOy bootleg 0328 24% 031% 0174 000 2 t%

Wbseg 2&9% $247 $05 15%

848061191 0.301 20% 303% $34t $49 2t%

.51460298109 ---h- O2tt 23% 1 a: 1519 $68 29%

841609)081 0229 17% 639% $286 $31 1 3%

1c8806684 0177 j 13% 234% 5312 $26 ii4$
W11411111104114 0004 11% 034% $475 034 1 6%

Ptmto4050hy I °V9’ 505% 1,ab 3 Wa 11%

414 0114 89% 280% $1318 $20 30%

SII0W000b489 1 .3 0906 08% 55% I $20 6t9 • 08%

Ooodoy, 14180119 0090 0.2% 556% 0300 $13 06%

16116109 J4 0089 07% 8340 5Th 06%

Osno 6141119 0.079 06% 232% $241 09 04%

Motoroyd 06 182% 1 $041 512 05%
M8011osoeleg 005$ 04% 206% $711 00 02%

SkaOng/ odd no 0049 4!! W $289 $7 02%

01115161111 0844 0.2% to 8% 01.371 $28 1 2%

ploo6sIno - 0.021 0.1%’
00113_n! —4.

$167 52 03%

Soommiog 0.010 01% 47.1% 0440 $3 01%

619 0.006 0.6% 7.4% $46 $0

Total 3.400 05.0% $2330 t 00.0%

OIbeoIo100wnLandOntdooIReOoeat,ooronoon,y I ot

159



References
acillie Physical 444 Meplal 404110 Ocoopftsof 40141411400100(115 l11-l4tJAclo,a) 4) PalS

4,0 fecleafice A 40040Sf, afiAl 211110111

I 444frjaN. S Olaf Places Off 44(140 050444, 600yeahoe — A 450PIPA Pecoca 25-ar 34)14414)4017441 POPIPA4AA 444 PPA,IAII ‘IA II
(1010f

I 55,40441 A 0141 140410404 a,104c11-)ppg Ascopsoy Atody so thy Pta[th-PA4140t.eg ltepatt Al 01414A41 PlIploc10010Il. 19.644
lelel441i 00313100001 of Rootlip 0001114 04 15(1410)

4 115.0 Plfayheço P 01004) 0040040fllflllooal010l14404I1040000505 Aelc’flAppetlcloApAblAldel PAf4olAleSAoafl4llfPaI

flsl A010lfcatJA,4ieaIflPf4bIPlll4IfN 44)4) 15(0-1(01

MAPS OP 0141 0000 f,lboslc0440PAlksCAAlP4Of04010ASl4le1010l1504910-PPIPO)3-9rJ041P4001PallatJ 00044(144

A4eA,p.AllatS4lPa 24 (201ff

I 111100 ((ooooooAAO 01104044 callllfbIl014ifaAcf.4100l4ell 0011101 laSt, ll-fO-Pl12-Al 0004411414040,14143 CAAJ4A. 10)1040 altO

o 1114101. C 3 II a) P)11414,AMI,IAA004PAI 005A,lapeldall000 1111011004 looPy 9Oct10 1040(15 Al 041001044415400414 sf10,141
00010410241e4124-5r3414141140P401A5440111411AllA41414lA,a1140,le 34)2016)

I LAllA4404 1 01 ai 441091110) 010.410044410,1,0410 )ctAaoce-Aased Caltlbl1040l 01015101 14,1040 404 8004311411 145.108 1310

04014-4400441181141.0) 645101))

O (1) Codhey. A (2009) 5414411 000103140 HeaSh. 304 Welta,, 8440lIlAP430A 404 loNapploytIco 000llAlAthlf SOON 66p1,pp-p

II ).Ic.SI tIll. 44001514 84,51 o,oA Iosoeal,ooal FlolillIos, PhysIcal 40(1145.44401011111 Cole CANtAtA, fidel MsIIN Esedecce IIIA (10
CAlsel,es. 100-128 34,144100 elAte Idea 08.04 50)1019)

II Ma,olhoA.L efalAspsloooaoslessoAoloswAa,oopsoat,Ao(o,000440y45005dsIoeA0100p140Paelele,l0014444100c0401lI,e

ocelleyc: (0501010 4014 Ap011 0401000 PooqIaso 451144581 Coptop 140000l)P0l11) UPIIOIK., Adcoo 20101 hOops ‘IshlIoAIfrsoeiIhelt)

AO4IAP 01410ASA 51y44412A10401AAAIAIOI-Oec Ay00010,1 004,04-0441 0111511000041

01 IclafIotal LopafCeo,pps,,,too,apd PIAIOIOOI400as 000MplIAlp30400AfPfA004lfadv90411AAPlA-544il1aAAeAtaI
Feoa4lceect. I-IA.’ 405,441000454000010404044444010411410 45 5-6(1004)

01 16I154004PpAijNee 14 .04) Al - P0111,40 604111 0100Sf, At thePAl-Ilal 0-35444’ PP,ieA040141 SI Typical Pooplatoso, 0 OI100AeoAt fopool

)PPe401ype) A Study P14)1410000 PAA04451. I-Il; 00.00444.44 4511140

14 0114(01 01 0111.4401(054 4001441144 0414,0 01544 To14144 404 lasIalAoPAlIty I-IL 51414045100 000 11(2020)

IS 04)0,3K 0)40,444041 Pe,lept440 A000004144041140 P0144401l4111petalIA544l54004 PIAAOPSI010SI.40-WApp114
Ol400100lppslalPdIAallcalO ClpA000al 1041100.04 20(2)110

I6Pco Stephyr.eae P .0 0(11.010 Ale 01,tdoooese Fo04pooo 440404)104(44)1 €44041110 IC 04,4444 104-141Uta41041 If P1041104141
04144440 04 42(2015)

Gloat 04,40,0440, PoptoaPop 5000AIlIp I

160



 

 

 
   

Board Meeting 
REDI Northwest Alberta 
APPROVED MINUTES 

Video Conference Call - Zoom 
June 23, 2021 

7:00 REDI Meeting 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
 
REDI Board Members Present 

Lisa Wardley, Chair, Mackenzie County   
Boyd Langford, Vice-Chair, Town of High Level 
Michelle Farris, Secretary/Treasurer, Town of Rainbow Lake 
Peter Braun, Mackenzie County 
Mike Osborn, Community Futures Northwest Alberta 
Greg McIvor, Zama Chamber Committee 
Larry Neufeld, La Crete Chamber of Commerce 
Jonathan Parenteau, CAO, Paddle Prairie  

 
Staff & Guests  
    Andrew O'Rourke, REDI Manager 

Jordan Asels, Dene Tha’ First Nation 
Byron Peters, Mackenzie County 
      

1. CALL TO ORDER     
Chair Lisa Wardley called the meeting to order and declared quorum at 7:07 pm. 
 
2. REVIEW & ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
Motion:        Moved by Peter Braun    
That REDI accept the agenda as presented.  
Carried  
 
3.   MINUTES OF MAY 26, 2021, MEETING 
 
Motion:        Moved by Boyd Langford   
That the minutes of May 26, 2021, REDI Meeting be accepted as presented. 
Carried 
 
4.  YTD FINANCIAL REPORT MAY 31, 2021 
 
Motion:        Moved by Larry Neufeld 
That the Year-to-Date May 31, 2021, Financial report be accepted.  
Carried 
   
5. CHAIRS REPORT  
 
The Transport Utility Taskforce has been initiated, with the first meeting scheduled for the end 
of June, and an in-person meeting and introductions in July. The intention is to have the 

161



 

 

majority of the meeting via zoom, as taskforce members are spread out across the Province. Last 
week Travel Alberta for the second time, has asked MFTA to work with a community to assist 
in setting up their own DMO. The Town of Hinton does not have an active REDA to assist. In a 
recent conversation with the Town of Hinton, MFTA outlined how they came about, board 
structure, funding opportunities etc.  There is a very active Community Futures in Hinton, and 
there is the possibility of a partnership to assist new DMO getting off the ground.   
 
6. MANAGERS REPORT 
 
The Minister of Agriculture and Forestry hosted an engagement session for the new CAP 
Framework – Canadian Agricultural Partnership. REDA managers put forward seven  
suggestions: Increase outreach officers, off gird electrification, last mile internet towers for 
on-farm broadband, additional funding for Ag service boards etc.  Charlene Smylie is the 
new manager for the REDA GROWTH. At the REDA manager's meeting, there is always the 
question about future sustainability. With ideas about increasing membership fees, one REDA is 
suggesting creating a solar farm utility company to generate income to sustain itself. REDI 
submitted our operational plan and reporting to JEI, and funding was approved for the 
2021/2022 year. 
 
Motion:        Moved by Michelle Farris  
That the Chairs & Managers verbal reports be accepted as presented.  
Carried 
 
7.  NEW BUSINESS 
 

i.   Energy Futures Labs – Road Show 
Rainbow Lake would like to work collaboratively with Energy Future Labs (EFL)to forge a 
pathway for its community resilience and energy innovation. EFL is looking for expressions of 
interest by June 25 to host an Energy Futures Roadshow, which would be digital due to Covid 
restrictions. The purpose of a Roadshow is to support a community in sparking a collaborative 
forum for the “radical-middle” while exploring the unique opportunities and challenges of a 
community’s energy future.  
 
Motion:        Moved by Mike Osborn  
That REDI provides a letter of support and work with the Town of Rainbow Lake on the Energy 
Futures Labs Application.  
Carried 
 

ii. FMA Renewal Support Letter 
The sawmills of Tolko, West Frasier and La Crete Sawmills are going through the process of 
renewing the FMA 02000400. The woodlands managers have requested a letter of support to be 
included in their renewal package to the Minister. REDI will need to reach out to Tolko and 
West Frasier for clarification, as REDI would like the opportunity to support all sustainable 
forestry operations in the region. This request is for only the three mills mentioned, and REDI 
does not want our letter of support to overshadow and eliminate other forestry operations. 
 
Motion:        Moved by Peter Braun   
That REDI write a letter of support to the Minister of Agriculture and Forestry in support of the 
new (FMA) 0200040 for the three mills of Tolko, West Frasier, and La Crete Sawmills. 
Carried 
 
 

162



 

 

 
iii. 20 Years of REDI  

 
The REDI manager should work with Long Sleeve Productions to create a short commercial that 
celebrates 20 years of REDI. This could include interviewing existing and previous board 
members and previous footage collected from the region. 
 

iv. Membership Presentations 
 
The La Crete Chamber has requested that REDI present current projects to its board. The 
intention is also to update Councils and existing membership. In addition, REDI Chair has 
expressed interest in speaking to the membership. Community Futures has offered to cost-share 
travel expenses.  
 
Motion:        Moved by Mike Osborn 
That REDI develops a plan after municipal elections to visit partners over six months to a year 
timeframe.     
Carried 
 

v. Community Profiles   
Rainbow Lake would like REDI to make an investment profile for its community. To include 
available land, vacant properties, populations breakdown and outline opportunities for 
investment. The REDI Manager will visit Rainbow Lake during the summer months and gather 
information required for the information package. The intent would be to create a template that 
could be replicated for each of our other communities and then create a budget to build out the 
project across the region. 
 
Motion:        Moved by Mike Osborn 
That REDI create an investment profile template using the Town of Rainbow Lake and create a 
plan to develop the project for the region.   
Carried 
 
10. OLD BUSINESS 
 

i. REDI Business / Tourism Survey Update  
The business/tourism survey had a story in the Echo Pioneer, which increased the exposure and 
also increased the number of respondents. As of June 10, there were 247 surveys completed, 82 
on the business side and 165 on direct tourism. There are now survey cards going out to all 
campgrounds in the region. The survey will end on July 30, and the REDI manager will compile 
the final report. Two interesting facts 31% of completed business surveys viewed themselves as 
a tourism business. The other exciting survey fact, 65% of our businesses employ under six 
employees. 
 
ii. Helium Two Page Report   

A two-page report provided by consultant Randy Baldwin on the basic economics of Helium 
was in the package. Helium is extracted from natural gas and typically is between 2-3% 
component of the gas. In order to be commercially viable, Helium needs to be above 3% 
concentrate in natural gas. 
 
iii. CanExport Update: 
A copy of the Chinese Mandarin dialect of the A2A snapshot was provided in the package. This 
snapshot will be updated later in the project to reflect the Alberta to Alaska rail line instead of 

163



 

 

focusing on the A2A company. Its target audience is the Invest Alberta office in Beijing, which 
regularly presents to investment houses in mainland China.  
 
iv. Federal Census 2021  
As Statistics Canada knows that they have gathered low numbers in our region in the past, they 
are paying particular attention to our region. As a result, they have changed their strategy to 
ensure the best possible results. This includes having numerators make multiple trips to the same 
address. REDI Manager to contact Brian Dewar to receive an update. 
 
v. Transport Utility Corridors  

Letter from MLA Getson with official appointment of REDI chair on Transport Utility Corridor 
Taskforce. REDI has created a dropbox folder with relevant reports to be shared with the task 
force. When the first meeting happens, the REDI chair will update the board. REDI has a 
document that outlines additional routing options for a transportation corridor. A2A is in 
receivership looking for a buyer, including initial routing, proprietary information and 
preliminary engineering etc. Alaska is taking the lead on the rail line project at the moment and 
pushing forward to create a viable project.   
 
9. ROUNDTABLE   
 
Peter Braun – I just heard the frost was out far enough so that they can do the concrete work at 
the arena project in La Crete. The steel structure is all ready for installation. Today they hooked 
up water and sewer, so it's coming along pretty good. Otherwise, Canada day is planned for a 
Parade and few other events. 
 
Michelle Farris – Rainbow Lake had its disaster last week with the rains washing out Highway 
58 in four places. The town is repairing driveway culverts for residents that were washed out 
through no fault of their own. Canada day in Rainbow is full-out COVID-free. Unfortunately, 
our town is dwindling as we are having a lot of families move away this year. Cenovus might be 
starting up additional projects in September. 
 
Jordan Asels – The Dene Tha First nation in Cheteh have also had flooding issues, and we 
currently have 170 people evacuated in various hotels in High Level. There will be a 
considerable undertaking to renovate the 68 homes that have been flooded out in Cheteh. We are 
still waiting on the universal broadband fund for our communities, but it looks hopeful. The SRP 
program is going forward, and we are developing our first community plan to remediate some of 
the sites that are accessible during the summer. Hopefully take advantage of that program for the 
following year and a half. The Dene Tha has also finished up its community consultations for 
the old trailer park in High Level. The next steps would be to create a business plan and go after 
funding for that project.  
 
Mike Osborn – This is the last week for our RRRF loans for small businesses. The uptake on 
this latest version, RRRF4, has been light, but for people who have applied for it, we will be 
able to help them. It is going to be interesting for the next year or two. I’m looking forward to 
the results of the business/tourism survey. That will form the basis for our plans and help the 
region move forward.  
 
Greg McIvor –  In Zama, we have the tree planters here. The campground is busy. Hopefully, 
with rising oil prices and investigation into Hydrogen and Helium, there could be some 
exploration and some good things on the horizon.  
 

164



 

 

Larry Neufeld – La Crete now has a farmers market, a really good organization, affiliated 
thought the Ag Society. This week there were 18 vendors at Jubilee Park. The La Crete 
Chamber was invited to a meeting with the Minister of Jobs, Economic and Innovation, and 
MLA Dan Williams and Danny Friesen. We talked a lot about Ag; value adds, irrigation, 
birthing centre and a potential toll bridge. Also, recent improvements to gas and power 
infrastructure so that our area can accommodate future economic growth.  
 
Boyd Langford – Monday was National Aboriginal Day. In High Level, the event was a huge 
success. They had teepees set up in the park behind the town office, and it looked like they had 
several hundred people out. Knelsens is working on Highway 35, with the overlay hitting south 
of town. Last year they paved 32km, starting in Manning going south. They were supposed to be 
paving 35km starting in High Level going south, but it's been axed to only 14km. The Town of 
High Level is piggybacking on the construction and creating a full loop from Tim Hortons to 
Dechant Construction.  
 
Jonathan Parenteau – Paddle Prairie was reached out to by the executive at the Indigenous 
Opportunities Corporation concerning the 1B dollars which are being made available to 
Indigenous communities in loans. So Paddle Prairie is looking at projects both on and off the 
Settlement.  
 
Lisa Wardley – Campreservation.ca can book the campgrounds in Zama. We have two 
cabins which can be rented out; hopefully, they will be set up in the first part of July. The tree 
planters will be in Zama until the end of July. Mackenzie County has road issues across the 
municipality with the water table, soft spots, and culvert repairs. Also, there will be future 
municipal restructuring. We had a meeting with Municipal Affairs, but nothing will 
change until after the elections in the fall. MFTA will work with Might Peace Tourism to create 
a large circle tour, starting in Peace River, Slave Lake through Mackenzie Region, and High 
Level and back through Paddle Prairie Manning.  
 
 10. ADJOURNMENT & NEXT MEETING  
 
The next REDI meeting will take place on September 22, 2021, at 7:00 pm at High Level 
Council Chambers.  
 
Motion:         Moved by Peter Braun  
That the REDI meeting be adjourned at 8:45 pm. 
Carried  
 
 
________________________________ _______________________ 
Lisa Wardley Chair REDI Manager 

165



 

 

Mackenzie County Library Board (MCLB) 
September 7, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 

Fort Vermilion Library 
 
Present: Beth Kappelar, Steven Simpson, Lorraine Peters, Wally Schroeder, Kayla Wardley, Sandra Neufeld, Lisa Wardley,      
      Cameron Cardinal, and Tamie McLean. 
 
1.0  Beth Kappelar called the meeting to order at 7:05 pm. 
 
2.0  Approval of the Agenda:     
  MOTION #2021-07-01 Tamie McLean moved the approval of the agenda as revised.                   CARRIED         
                                          
3.0  Approval of the Minutes:   

MOTION #2021-07-02 Sandra Neufeld moved the approval of the August 10/21 meeting minutes.    CARRIED                
                                                                                                                                         

4.0  Review of Action Items: 
  - The action items of the previous MCLB meeting were reviewed. 
 
5.0  Financial: 
 5.1 MCLB Financial Report as of August 31/21:   
  - Balance Forward            $   87,433.11 
  - Total Revenues               $ 352,024.54 
  - Total Expenses    $ 189,090.37 
  -  Bank Balance           $ 250,367.28 
  MOTION #2021-07-03 Lorraine Peters moved to accept the financial report as presented.                          CARRIED      
 
 5.2 MCLB 2022 Budget: 
  MOTION #2021-07-04 Lorraine Peters moved that MCLB request the same budget amount from the County for 2022  
  as  in 2021 and also that the MCLB request an additional $20,000 to build a capital reserve fund.    CARRIED 
 
 5.3 Fort Vermilion Library Financials: 
  - The Fort Vermilion Library has a current bank balance of $27,531.95. 
  -  It is recommended that the library buy more books and audio items. 
  -  Instead of using a credit card, accounts should be set up with suppliers or Amazon gift cards could be purchased.  
 
6.0  Library Reports:   
 6.1 La Crete: 

-  Circulation for August was 9942 items. 
-  The library inventory was completed.  Only 8 items were lost compared to 9 last year. 
-  85 new patrons were added in July. 
-  New shelves will be built for the graphic novels. 
-  The insurance renewal form is being completed for the County. 
    -  Building value:    $284,266    Insurance fee paid by the County.  
    -  Content value:     $914,348     Insurance fee paid by the La Crete Library Society. 
-  The library trailer addition has shifted causing a leak in the roof and water damage. The damage has been repaired. 
-  One librarian has resigned. A new librarian/janitor needs to be hired. 
-  The Salmon Grill will be held on Oct 30/21. The entertainment has been booked. 
    

 6.2 Fort Vermilion: 
-  An additional librarian was hired for 10 hours a week at $18 per hour.  Library hours now are Tuesday, Friday and     
 Saturday from 12:30 pm to 8:00 pm.   
-  Their financials are all up to date. 
-  They are working on their insurance renewal: 
 -  Building value:  $1.1 million Insurance fee paid by the Fort Vermilion Library Society to the County 
 -  Content value:   $480,000      Insurance fee paid by the MCLB   
MOTION #2021-07-05 Tamie McLean moved that the content value be increased to $650,000                    CARRIED                    
                          …2 
 
 

166



 

 

 6.3 Zama: 
  -  The tree planters are increasing library circulation.                   
  -  They have a well-developed campground. 
  -  Yoga classes are being offered to patrons. 
  - The library has purchased a meat grinder and a dehydrator for patron use.’  
 
 6.4 Mackenzie County Library Consortium (MCLC): 
  -  One of La Crete’s Little Free Libraries needed repair. 
  -  Motorcycle tourism is coming to our region with a photographer the 1st week of October.  They will highlight our  
      region in their publication. 
  -  Overdrive is not yet functional. 
 

6.5 High Level: 
- No report. 
MOTION #2021-07-06 Wally Schroeder moved the acceptance of the library reports for information.       CARRIED      
 

7.0  Old Business: 
       None 
 
8.0      New Business: 
      8.1 Library Act Survey: 
  -  The province wants to streamline the Library Act. 
  -  MCLB members are asked for their input by completing a survey by Oct 8/21. 
 
 8.2 Policy Review: 
  -  The next MCLB meeting will focus on updating the MCLB Library Policies. 
  -  The policies of our three libraries need to be brought to the MCLB supper meeting at 6:00 pm on Oct 12/21. 
  -  Wally Schroeder will pick up pizza for the meeting.  
 
 8.3 MCLB Appointments: 
  -  Four MCLB member’s terms are expiring. They need to reapply if they wish to continue serving on the MCLB. 
 
9.0  Correspondence: 
  - None 
 
10.0    In Camera: 
  -  Not required. 
   
11.0  Next Meeting Date and Location: Fort Vermilion Library Oct 12, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. (Steven will pick up the key                                         
                              if Sam is not working.) 
 
12.0 Adjournment: 

MOTION # 2021-07-07 Steven Simpson moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:25 p.m.                                 CARRIED 
 

 
These minutes were adopted this 12th day of October 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
                                           ______________________________________ 
                                          Beth Kappelar, Chair 

167



1

Colleen Sarapuk

Subject: FW: FCSS Updates
Attachments: image001.png; Creating a MADI B account.pdf

 

From: Arlene Wright <Arlene.Wright@gov.ab.ca> On Behalf Of Julie Skrepnek 
Sent: October 22, 2021 11:58 AM 
To: Julie Skrepnek <Julie.Skrepnek@gov.ab.ca> 
Cc: Arlene Wright <Arlene.Wright@gov.ab.ca>; Connor Gaughan <Connor.Gaughan@gov.ab.ca>; Nicole Nowakowski 
<nicole.nowakowski@gov.ab.ca>; Jane Schlosser <Jane.Schlosser@gov.ab.ca> 
Subject: FCSS Updates 
  
Good morning All:  
   
I would first like to introduce myself as the new Director of Community Preventive Programs with the Government of 
Alberta where the key focus of my role is The Family and Community Support Services (FCSS) program. I’ve had the 
opportunity to connect with some of you via email, by phone, and online meetings over the past month and it has been 
great. I am honoured to be leading the FCSS team including Arlene, Connor, Nicole, and Jane. I continue to be impressed 
with the communities’ dedication and delivery of your local FCSS programs which are making a difference in the lives of 
Albertans.  
   
FCSS has been implementing a change to the system that is used to administer the grant program. I would like to 
provide you with an update on where we are at on the project as we are approaching a milestone.  
   
The build phase is nearing completion and with that, we are now engaging some stakeholders to participate in demo 
sessions. The purpose of these sessions is for them to get a feel of the new system and to get their feedback from a user 
experience perspective. We are looking to have this complete by early November and would like to thank those who are 
taking part as their feedback is invaluable.  
   
We are currently anticipating the launch of the new system will be the beginning of 2022…a great way to kick off the 
new year with a more user‐friendly and integrated system!  
   
As we move closer to launch date, we will be providing more information on training and how you will be supported as 
we make this transition. In the meantime, please ensure that you are prepared by having your MADI‐B account set up. 
We have included instructions on how to do this if you have not done it already.  
   
I look forward to working together on this launch to make it a success!  
   
If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to reach out to me or Connor Gaughan (connor.gaughan@gov.ab.ca)  
   
   
Julie Skrepnek (she/her)  
Director of Community Preventive Programs  
Civil Society and Community Initiatives Branch  
Ministry of Community and Social Services  
Phone: 780‐975‐4347  
julie.skrepnek@gov.ab.ca  
   
   

168


	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:
	2021-09-14 - Regular Council Meeting Minutes DRAFT.pdf
	Minutes of the Regular Council meeting for Mackenzie County held on September 14, 2021 in the Council Chambers at the Fort Vermilion County Office.

	RFD - October 12  Regular Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	2021-10-12 - Budget Council Meeting Minutes DRAFT.pdf
	Minutes of the Regular Council meeting for Mackenzie County held on October 12, 2021 in the Council Chambers at the Fort Vermilion County Office.

	RFD Form - CAO and Director Reports Sept.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	RFD - Waste Transfer Station Haul Contract Extension.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	RFD -2021 Campground Caretaker Bonus.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	COMMUNICATIONS / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	COM001 Parks Caretaker Bonus Policy - Revised 2015-01-13 (1).pdf
	Mackenzie County

	RFD - DRP Claim Chateh Road Damage.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	RFD - Councillor's Expense Claims.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	RFD - Members at large Expense claims.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	Honorariums and Expense Reimbursement Bylaw
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	1. RFD Council DP Statistics Jan-Sept 2021 DRAFT.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	POLICY REFERENCES:
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	Information RFD.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	This One MPC RFD 2021-09-24.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	IMPC RFD.pdf
	REQUEST FOR DECISION
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	21-09-28 IMPC Meeting Minutes.pdf
	via Zoom

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



